
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 11 February 2019

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
On: Tuesday 19 February 2019 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 
2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillor J Hellyer (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, J Himan and R Julian

Non Elected Member: Roger Levick

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 
To receive apologies for absence for the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 4 - 9)
Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2018.

3.  Declaration of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered.

4.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II 



- 2 -

5.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair 

6.  DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Pages 10 - 20)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

7.  REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE SUPPORTING EVIDENCE (PRINCIPLE A) (Pages 21 
- 28)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

8.  ANNUAL CERTIFICATION LETTER (Pages 29 - 31)
To receive the report of Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

9.  Internal Audit Strategy and plan (Pages 32 - 52)
To receive a report from the Service Improvement Officer and DAP Partnership 
Manager.

10.  AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE (Pages 53 - 69)
To receive a report from the DAP Partnership Manager.

11.  PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS (Pages 70 - 74)
To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer.

12.  GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT (Pages 75 - 90)
To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors.

13.  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN (Pages 91 - 103)
To receive the report from Grant Thornton LLP, External Auditors 
Report.

14.  RIPA 
To receive an update from the Senior Solicitor.

15.  DATA PROTECTION ACT 2018 (GDPR) 
To receive an update from the Senior Solicitor.

16.  Forward Plan (Page 104)

17.  Exclusion of the Public 
The Chair to move:

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



- 3 -

18.  PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

19.  CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER - FEBRUARY 2019 (Pages 105 - 
107)
To receive a report from the Strategic Manager (Resources).

Meeting Organiser: Tom Vanstone - Democratic Services



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 20 November 2018 - 2.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair)
Councillors J Hellyer, J Himan and R Julian

Mr  Levick

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
M Bartlett - Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton
R Hutchins - Devon Audit Partnership Manager
M Richards - Democratic Services Officer

31.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brenton.

32.   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 July  were presented. 

It was proposed by Councillor Himan , seconded by Councillor Hellyer and –

Resolved:

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

(Vote: For 4, Abstentions 2)

33.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

34.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

The agenda as circulated was agreed.

35.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

There were no urgent matters brought forward.

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



2

36.   CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Service Improvement Officer presented the report and explained the purpose 
and content.  He confirmed that Code of Corporate Governance would be 
published once approved by the Committee.

It was proposed by Councillor Hellyer, seconded by Councillor Himan and –

Resolved:

That the revised Code of Corporate Governance be approved

(Vote: For Unanimous)

37.   2017-2018 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton explained that the Annual Audit Letter 
summarised the key findings from the work carried out for the period 1 April 2017 – 
31 March 2018.  In July, the Audit Findings Report had been submitted to 
Committee and a lot of the content had been similar; the difference between the 2 
documents was that the Annual Audit Letter was a public document and would go 
out to other stakeholders.

38.   MANAGING THE RISK OF FRAUD CORRUPTION 

The DAP Partnership Manager explained the purpose of the report which was 
produced annually to assess the effectiveness of TDC’s processes and 
management of the risk of fraud corruption.  CIPFA had recently updated its 
guidance and this was the set of measures against which this year’s report had 
been assessed.  

Identified fraud loss within the Public Sector was expected to be £702m, with 
£207m in Local Government.  The hidden costs of fraud were substantially higher.

The 3 key elements of the CIPFA guidance were:

 Acknowledge
 Prevent
 Pursue

Overall, TDC’s arrangements addressed CIPFA’S expected responses.  However, 
in terms of Counter fraud staff, TDC did not have a dedicated team as they had 
been transferred to the DWP.  This role was undertaken by a range of officers, 
including the Service Improvement Officer and Internal Audit (DAP).  The DAP 
offered further support through its Plymouth resources.

It was noted that some posts required additional checks such as DBS, credit 
checks and checks on company directorships held, resigned or disqualified from.  
Concerns were raised that checks on company directorships held, resigned or 

Page 5



3

disqualified from were not routinely undertaken.  The DAP Partnership Manager will 
investigate why this is the case and report back.

Members expressed an interest in seeing regular updates on identified fraud cases 
and were advised that:

 The reported incidents tended to reflect weaknesses in the system 
nationally, particularly around the Metropolitan areas, and often did not hit 
the West Country before systems had already been put in place to mitigate 
the risk.

 The information was published in the DAP newsletter which was made 
available to TDC.  Furthermore, an annual report was presented to the Audit 
& Governance Committee.

 Last year, no incidents had been recorded in Torridge. 
 Often cases had arisen from error, rather than deliberate claims.
 Intelligence led operations, in conjunction with DCC, South Hams and West 

Devon Councils, were due to commence.

The report was noted.

39.   AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE 

Four audit reports had been issued to date:

 GDPR
 Food Safety
 Council Tax
 Building Control

The GDPR report was a position statement with no audit opinion. The opinion for 
the other audits at the time of publication was good.

GDPR was discussed in further detail.  Members were reminded that online training 
had been made available to all staff and councillors.  Staff uptake had been 100% 
but Member participation had been poor.  There had also been a training session at 
Caddsdown.  It was imperative that Members undergo the training but the difficulty 
was how to enforce this.

With regard to the Building Control report further information was requested on the 
recommendations made to address the observation that officers were not currently 
formally recording conflicts of interest.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

That:

 The report be approved

Page 6



4

 That a recommendation be brought to Full Council based on the risk 
identified. 

(Vote: For – unanimous)

The Chair and the Service Improvement Officer will draft the wording and then 
circulate to the Committee for approval.

40.   PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS 

The purpose of the report was to provide the Committee with an update on 
progress with implementing agreed actions and to ensure that things are 
completed.

The report identified 20 completed actions and 13 new actions.

Seven internal audit actions were due for completion by the end of October 2018 
but were not completed on time. The responsible officers had been contacted and 
as a result:

- An extension had been agreed for 4 audit actions;
- A second extension had been proposed for 1 audit action;
- Two audit actions remained outstanding.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Julian and –

Resolved:

That:

 The second extension request be agreed.
 The progress with actions in this Quarter be noted

(Vote: For – unanimous)

41.   CONSULTATION ON THE SCALE OF AUDIT FEES 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised the Committee that the scale of audit 
fees was set by an external body – Public Sector Audit Appointments.  The 
proposed scale of fees had to go through a consultation process which would end 
on 17 December.

The proposal was that the scale of audit fees for 2018/2019 should remain the 
same for 2019/2020, maintaining a 23% reduction.  The fee will be £31,792.

It was proposed by Councillor Himan, seconded by Councillor Julian and – 

Resolved:

That the Scale of Audit Fees be approved.

Page 7



5

(Vote: For - unanimous)

42.   GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT 

The audit of TDC's 2017/18 financial statements was complete and the focus had 
now shifted to the 2018/2019 financial year, planning the process and looking at 
dates for interim audits.  Other services provided by Grant Thornton included 
regular meetings with the Head of Paid Service and the Strategic Manager 
(Resources); Certification of the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim 
and a range of workshops.  

Members were informed that the Annual Certification Letter will be presented to the 
next meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee. 

The report was reviewed and the following updates were highlighted:

 CIPFA had produced a financial resilience index
 The introduction of the business rate pilot – It was noted that TDC’s bid was 

currently under review and a decision would be made on 7 December.  Our 
MP had been asked to put his support behind the bid.

 The impact of the Fair Funding Review.  Consultation documents were 
expected after Christmas.

In response to a question on Brexit, the Strategic Manager (Resources) gave 
details of various groups looking at the impact of Brexit.  These included the Brexit 
Resilience Officers Group, led by the Chief Executive of DCC and the HotSW Joint 
Committee.  HotSW had raised concerns around ports and harbours particularly.  
However, there was a lack of information coming forward.

The Strategic Manger (Resources) confirmed to the meeting that the consultation 
on the financial resilience index had now closed and had proved controversial in 
some LA sectors.

The Chair notified the Committee that Geraldine Daly would be leaving her role as 
Engagement Lead for TDC and he asked the Engagement Manager to pass on the 
Committee’s thanks and best wishes.  

43.   FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan was reviewed and timing of the DAP GDPR audit was discussed.  
It was agreed that a verbal update on GDPR would be given at the next meeting.

44.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

It was proposed by Councillor Hellyer and seconded by Councillor Julian –

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) the 
public be exclude from the meeting for the following items of business because of 

Page 8



6

the likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 1 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of schedule 12A of the local Government Act 1972.

(Vote: For – Unanimous)

45.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION) 

46.   CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the risk register in its new format.  
He explained how the new layout worked, adding that it would be presented in Part 
II so that any future risks which may contain material of a confidential could be 
considered in depth.

The risks flagged red were discussed.

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett and seconded by Councillor Julian - 

That the meeting return to Part I and that any press and public be readmitted.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.49 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 9



 

Torridge District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Governance  
Statement 
2018/2019 

 
 

Draft : February 2019 
Page 10

Agenda Item 6



A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values, 

and respecting the rule of law 

B. Ensuring openness 

and comprehensive 

stakeholder 

engagement 

C. Defining 

outcomes in 

terms of 

sustainable 

economic, social, 

and 

environmental 

benefits 

E. Developing 

the entity’s 

capacity, 

including the 

capability of its 

leadership and 

the individuals 

within it  

D. Determining 

the 

interventions 

necessary to 

optimise the 

achievement of 

the intended 

outcomes 

G. Implementing good 

practices in transparency, 

reporting, and audit, to 

deliver effective 

accountability 

F.  Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management 

The Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate 

Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and 

Society of Local Authority Chief Executive’s (SOLACE) 

Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 

Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016. This statement 

explains how Torridge has complied with the code and also how 

we meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2016, which requires all relevant bodies to prepare an 
Annual Governance Statement.  

 

 

 

 

 

A copy of the Council’s code 

is available on our website at 

www.torridge.gov.uk/governance  

or can be obtained from the 

Governance Manager,  

Riverbank House, Bideford, 

Devon  EX39 2QG 

 

 
 

 The Code of Governance sets out the principles of good  

governance and describes the arrangements the Council 

has  put in place to meet each of these principles: 

 

Torridge District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business 

is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and 

that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly accounted 

for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council 

also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 

arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in 

which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness. In discharging this overall 

responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the 

effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the 

management of risk. 

  

Scope of 

Responsibility  

2 

Page 11

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12759/Corporate-Governance-at-Torridge


The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, 

culture and values, by which the Council directs and controls its 

activities, and how it leads, engages with and accounts to the 

community it serves. It enables the Council to monitor the 

achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 

objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective 

services and outcomes.  

 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework 

and is designed to manage risk to an acceptable level in accordance 

with our ‘risk appetite’ threshold. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to 

achieve the Council’s aims and objectives, but it seeks to provide 

reasonable rather than absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 

system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed 

to identify, prioritise and manage the risks to the achievement of the 

Council’s aims and objectives. 

  

The governance framework has been in place at Torridge District 

Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of 

approval of the annual statement of accounts.  

 

The Council’s Governance Framework addresses the way the 

Council is controlled and managed, both strategically and 

operationally, and how it will deliver its services. The Framework 

recognises that the Council’s business is focussed upon its 

corporate priorities and seeks to facilitate delivery to our local 

communities of the goals set out in the Strategic Plan. The 

structures and processes, risk management and other internal 

control systems, such as standards of conduct, form part of this 

Framework, which is about managing the barriers to achieving the 

Council’s objectives. 

 

The local Code of Corporate Governance is reviewed annually 

through the Audit and Governance Committee. This last 

happened on 20 November 2018. Members and senior officers 

are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the 

governance of the Council’s affairs and the stewardship of the 

resources at its disposal.  This task is managed by the Strategic 

Management Team (SMT) which comprises the Head of Paid 

Service (HOPS), the Section 151 Officer, and the Senior 

Solicitor/Monitoring Officer. 

  

To achieve its vision/objectives the Council has designed systems 

and processes to regulate, monitor and control its activities. The 

Code of Corporate Governance sets out the controls in full. 
 

The 

Purpose of 

the 

Governance 

Framework 

 

The  

Governance 

Framework 

3 
Page 12



Code of Corporate Governance 
(The Council’s commitment to good governance based on the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework) 

Monitoring Officer 
(Legal & Ethical Assurance) 

Governance 

Manager 
(Challenge Governance 

Statement etc.) 

S151Officer 
(Promote & Deliver Good Financial 

Management) 

Annual Governance Statement 
(Meets Account & Audit Regulations and is published with the Annual Accounts) 

Constitution 

Code of Conduct 

Scheme of 

Delegation 

Complaints 

Process 

Equality & 

Diversity 

Financial 

Management 

Framework 

Budget Monitoring 

Process 

Compliance with 

CIPFA Guidelines 

HR Policies 

Pay Policy 

Risk Management  

Complaints 

Summary 

Reports 

Corporate Risk 

Register 

Annual Audit Letters 

(External) 

Local Government 

Ombudsman 

Report 

Statement of 

Accounts 

Standards 

Committee 

Strategic Plan 

Policies & 

Procedures 

Business Planning 

Business Continuity 

Performance 

Results 

Partnership 

Protocol 

Audit & Governance 

Committee 
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence. 

Approve AGS) 

Head of Paid Service  

& Strategic Management Team 
(Challenge the draft AGS and supporting evidence) 

Torridge District Council - Governance Framework 

Financial & Contract  

Procedure Rules 

Medium Term 

Financial Strategy 

Treasury & 

Investment Strategy 

Whistleblowing 

Policy 

Personal Appraisals 

Public 

Consultations 

Annual Audit Opinion 

(Int) 

Quarterly Business 

Report 

Scrutiny Committee 

(Internal) 

Manager’s 

Assurance 

Statements 

Scrutiny Committee 

(External) 

Committee Reports 

Service 

Risk Registers 

Bribery, Anti-Fraud & 

Corruption Policy 

4 

Page 13



The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 

review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including 

the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is 

informed by: 

 the work of the Governance Team who have responsibility for 

the development and maintenance of the governance 

environment;  

 the Annual Internal Audit Assurance opinion, as provided by the 

Devon Audit Partnership;  

 comments made by the external auditors and other review 

agencies and inspectorates; and 

 the Audit & Governance Committee review that the elements of 

the governance framework are in place and effective, to ensure 

compliance with the principles. They also reviewed the system 

of internal audit and concluded it was effective and remained a 

key source of assurance for the Council in 2018/19.  

The Standards Committee has monitored 

standards of conduct of Members and advised 

the Council on probity issues. Entries made in 

the Register of Members’ Interests were 

reviewed by the Monitoring Officer. 

The Council’s Senior Managers have 

completed assurance statements for each of 

their areas of control, acknowledging 

responsibility for risk management and internal 

control, and certifying satisfaction with the 

arrangements in place throughout 2018/19.  

Other key officers have also been 

consulted for their views on the 

standards of governance within the 

Council – specifically the 

 Statutory Finance Officer,  

 Monitoring Officer, 

 Governance Manager, and  

 DAP Partnership Manager.  

The Council’s Monitoring Officer has a legal 

responsibility to look into matters of potential 

unlawfulness within the Council. In 2018/19 the 

Monitoring Officer has worked to ensure that 

the Council has the necessary arrangements in 

place to ensure compliance with the Data 

Protection Act 2018 which came into effect in 

May 2018. 

The Performance Management 

Framework has operated effectively 

during the year. Monitoring information 

on key areas of performance has been 

provided to the Governance Team for 

review and action. Performance 

management outputs have also been 

reviewed by the Overview & Scrutiny 

(Internal) Committee. 

In 2018/19 the Council responded to 

XX stage 1 and XX stage 2 formal 

customer complaints. The service 

standard is 28 days and the Council 

responded to XX% of complaints within 

this timeframe. Any learning outcomes 

from the complaints received have 

been fed back and incorporated into 

changes in service provision. 

5 

In accordance with section 3.7 of the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting for 

2017/18, Torridge’s financial management 

arrangements conform with the governance 

requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the 

Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 

Government (2010). 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

Page 14



Monitoring Reports from Key Partnerships and other External Bodies including: 

 Review of External Grants   P Play Area Strategy Scoping 

 Crime and Disorder   P North Devon’s Biosphere Reserve, AONB 

 Burton Art Gallery    P Health, Wellbeing and Social Care 

 1610 (Leisure Contractor)   P EA & DCC (Drainage/Flooding)                          

 North Devon Marketing Bureau P Business Bureau/Chamber of Commerce 

Reviewing Actions on Officer Reports: 

 Council Tax Discretionary Discount    P Quarterly Business Reports 

 Peer Review Action Plan  P Economic Strategy  

 Tourism Strategy   P Section 106  Agreements             

 Empty Homes Strategy     P Compulsory Purchase 

 Affordable Housing   P Land Charges 

 Income Generation Strategy Review             P Harbour Board Working Party  

 Effectiveness of LA Scrutiny Committees P Data Protection Act 2018 (GDPR) 

  

The Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Committee process has provided 

challenge and has monitored the Council’s policies and performance 

on an ongoing basis. Lead Members have also kept issues under 

review during meetings with managers. During 2018/19 the Members 

of O&S, both Internal and External, have worked together, adopting a 

non-political approach, developing and using their knowledge and 

expertise, and that of others to the best effect. An evidence-based 

approach to the O&S work has been instrumental in achieving good 

results.  There have been contributions, and input, from a range of 

stakeholders, including public and voluntary sector organisations, the 

public, officers and Members of the Council. Highlights have included:  

The Council is dedicated to ensuring that its resources are utilised in the most effective and 

efficient manner whilst delivering continuous improvement. In 2018/19 the Transforming 

Torridge programme has achieved major milestones under the following major work streams: 

waste review and accommodation. The Council successfully implemented a new waste and 

recycling service on 1st June including weekly food waste collections, fortnightly black bag 

collections, and a chargeable garden waste service. The Council moved all staff out of Bridge 

Buildings and the majority of staff are now located on a single site at Riverbank. Work has 

commenced to identify and agree the major deliverables for the next phase of the programme.   

  

During 2018/19 specific Member training was provided for the Audit & 

Governance, Planning and Standards Committees. General Member 

training included: Universal Credit, new technologies, the Local Plan, 

and GDPR.  

 6 

Updates on Key Projects 

The progress of the Transforming Torridge Programme (TTP) is monitored through a 

Programme Board which meets regularly and reports to Full Council. 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

Page 15



The Code of Governance was updated to 

give assurance that standards were met in 

key areas. The 2019 Code was approved 

by the Audit and Governance Committee in 

November 2018.   

In August 2018 the Council’s external 

auditor (Grant Thornton) provided the 

Council with an unqualified opinion on the 

Council’s accounts within their Annual 

Audit and Inspection letter. Grant Thornton 

were also satisfied that in all significant 

respects the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ending 31 March 

2018. 

Based on the assurance work 

undertaken by Internal Audit, the Audit 

Manager (DAP) has provided an opinion 

on the adequacy of the control 

environment which concluded that this 

was XXXXXXXXXX. It should, however, 

be noted that all risks of failure cannot 

be eliminated, and the assurance given 

is therefore reasonable and not 

absolute. Isolated areas in which 

controls were below the required 

standard are reported initially to the 

relevant Manager who ensures prompt 

corrective action is taken, and ultimately 

to the A&G Committee who monitor 

progress with improvements via follow 

up reports from Internal Audit. 

Internal Audit assessed corporate 

governance arrangements by measuring 

the Council against the requirements of the 

governance framework outlined in the 

CIPFA / SOLACE publication “Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government”, 

and the results of this have been reported to 

the Audit and Governance Committee. In 

December 2016 DAP underwent an external 

examination against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and 

received the top rating. 

In the 2017/18 Annual Governance 

Statement three significant issues were 

identified in relation to: an Annual Strategic 

Assessment for the Community Safety 

Partnership, insufficient Health & Safety 

resource levels, and the non adoption of a 

local plan. These three areas of risk have 

now been mitigated.  

All key systems were audited in 2018/19 

and a total of 16 audit reports were provided 

to management and the A&G Committee. 

This included an audit of the Council’s Risk 

Management arrangements (the audit 

opinion was XXXXXXXXX). During 2018/19 

Risk Management has been a standing item 

in the A&G Agenda and a separate Risk 

Management Group met on a regular basis 

to discuss risks and review the Corporate 

and Service Risk Registers.  

7 

Review of 

Effectiveness 

During 2018 the Council worked with Zurich 

Insurance following their independent 

Business Continuity Health Check. The 

follow up work included training for key 

officers and the completion of new Business 

Continuity Plans for the Council and each of 

the Service Areas – the  service BCPs have 

been incorporated into the service business 

plans.  

The Council has in place regular reporting arrangements on the 

financial affairs of the Council. The budget for 2018/19 was agreed 

by Full Council in February 2018 and financial performance was 

reported on a quarterly basis to Members. 

Page 16



8 

This Statement is intended to provide reasonable assurance. It is 

stressed that no system of control can provide absolute assurance 

against material misstatement or loss. In concluding this overview of 

the Council’s governance arrangements, three issues have been 

identified that need to be addressed to ensure continuous 

improvement in the Governance Framework. The aim is to address 

these weaknesses during the 2019/20 financial year, by way of an 

action plan for improving the governance framework and system of 

internal control. This will be subject to regular monitoring by the 

Committee. 

Issue 
No. 

Significant Issue Identified Summary of Action Proposed 

 
1 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 
 
 
 
 
 

Significant 

Governance 

Issues 

Page 17



9 

 

Our overall assessment is that this Annual Governance Statement is 

a balanced reflection of the governance environment and that an 

adequate framework exists within Torridge District Council to ensure 

effective internal control is maintained. Through the actions referred 

to on the previous page, we propose over the coming year to 

address the issues that have been identified, with a view to further 

enhancing our governance arrangements. These steps will identify 

improvements that are needed and we will monitor their 

implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 

  

 

Signed: ……………………………………. 

 

Date:  …………………. 

Councillor XXXXXXXXXX 

Chair of Audit & Governance Committee 

 

 

Signed: …………………………………... 

 

 

Date: …………………. 

Steve Hearse 

Statutory Finance Officer  

 

Signed: …………………………………... 

 

Date: ………………… 

Councillor XXXXXXXXXX 

Leader of the Council 

 

Signed: …………………………………... 

 

Date: ………………… 

Jenny Wallace 

Head of Paid Service 

Approval of 

the Annual 

Governance 

Statement 

Page 18



REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Draft Annual Governance Statement
Date: 19th February 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To provide an opportunity for Members to comment on the draft 2018/19 Annual Governance 
Statement.

 
1. INTRODUCTION

Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2016) requires the Council to conduct a 
review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to publish this in 
the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 
approved by the Audit & Governance Committee on 20 November 2018.

The Annual Governance Statement should be a holistic assessment of the check and balance 
arrangements that are in place to ensure that public money is properly spent and compliance 
with the principles for the conduct of individuals in public life.

Members are asked to review and comment on the draft 2018/19 Annual Governance 
Statement set out at Appendix A. The Annual Governance Statement will then be updated and 
presented for approval to the Audit & Governance Committee on 23rd July 2019.

2. REPORT

The Council’s aim is to produce an Annual Governance Statement which complies with 
published guidelines, is easy to read and is as succinct as possible. Ideally we would like our 
Annual Governance Statement to be ‘best practise’.   

The draft report is attached to this report as Appendix A. The red text indicates areas which will 
be updated in April 2019 when the required information is available. 

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
There is a legal requirement to publish an Annual Governance Statement as part of the 
approval of the annual statement of accounts.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications.

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
N/A

Page 19



Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
Evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement has been and will continue to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. This will include reviews of the Council’s governance and risk 
management arrangements. Any significant areas for improvement will be set out in the 
action plan.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
Reviewing the effectiveness of the control environment and reporting on the findings of the 
review is a key aspect of demonstrating that Torridge District Council has a formal and 
established response to the Corporate Governance requirements.

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Chair of Audit & Governance, Councillor Philip Hackett said ‘The purpose of the AGS is to 
confirm that the Council’s business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards, and that public money allocated to it is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively. This year’s AGS demonstrates that this 
approach has been robustly pursued at Torridge to ensure we have satisfactory outcomes 
and comply with legislation.’  

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Draft Annual Governance Statement is provided for consideration by Members and will 
be updated in April 2019. It will include an action plan to address any significant weaknesses 
highlighted by the Senior Managers Service Assurance Statements, the Audit Manager’s 
Opinion, and through the reviews of the AGS evidence database.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and bring forward 
suggestions for discussion.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Governance Manager
Statutory Finance Officer
Head of Paid Service
Monitoring Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett
DAP Partnership Manager

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Code of Governance 2019

Page 20



Agenda Item

REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit and Governance Committee
Subject: AGS - Review of Evidence
Date: 19th February 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To satisfy the Committee that the AGS Supporting Evidence reflects the governance framework

1. INTRODUCTION
Paragraph 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2016 requires the Council to 
conduct a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its control environment and to 
publish this in the Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement refers to a Code of Corporate Governance which was last 
approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 20th November 2018.  

The Annual Governance Statement was last approved by Audit & Governance Committee on 
12 June 2018.  

A process is in place for Members of the Committee to review the evidence to support the 
Statement on a rolling basis. 

2. REPORT

At the meeting on 29th November 2016 it was agreed that the Council should continue to look at 
governance evidence topics on a random basis, chosen by the Chair prior to each meeting. The 
Chair has chosen Principles A for review at the meeting on the 19th February 2019.

Principle A is about Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to 
ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.

Section A1 is about Behaving with integrity
Section A2 is about Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values
Section A1 is about Respecting the rule of law

A copy of these sections of the database is included in Appendix A and Members are invited 
either before, during or any time after the meeting, to select items for further interrogation, to 
satisfy themselves that the evidence accurately reflects the governance framework.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications

There is a legal requirement as part of approval of the annual statement of accounts

Financial Implications

None

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Human Resources Implications

None

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications

N/A

Equality/Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment prepared

Risk Management

The evidence supporting the Annual Governance Statement reviews the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and identifies areas for improvement 
that are identified in the action plan.

Compliance with Policies and Strategies

Approval and adoption of the Annual Governance Statement is a key aspect of demonstrating 
that Torridge District Council has undertaken an annual review of its governance framework

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultation date – Chair of A&G, Councillor Philip Hackett, on 25th January 2019.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Committee having reviewed the evidence to support the Annual Governance Statement 
will then make suggestions to address any areas identified for improvement.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:

 The evidence contained in section A of the supporting database be noted.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace, Head of Paid Service
Staci Dory, Monitoring Officer
Steve Hearse, Statutory Finance Officer
Councillor Philip Hackett

Contact Officers: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Supporting Database

Page 22



PRINCIPLE A    
Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law  

The Local Code should reflect the 
requirement

of local authorities to:

Suggested systems, processes 
and documentation

to demonstrate compliance
2018/19 

Evidence of TDC Compliance
Action 
Req. 
(Y/N)

A1  Behaving with integrity
100%

Code of Conduct for Members and Officers are 
included in Part 5 of the Constitution. The Induction 
process for both Members and Officers includes the 
relevant Code of Conduct  

 

Constitution Part 5  
Website - Members code of conduct and register of interests  
Members Induction Pack - Contents  
Officer induction checklist  

Codes of Conduct

The Deal  
Members sign individual forms to agree to comply 
with the code of conduct

 Individual sign-off with regard to 
compliance with the codes

Register of Interests Form  
Member induction covers the Code of Conduct, 
Media Policy (signed), Data Proection Guidance 
(signed), IT Scurity Guidance (signed) and Register 
of Interests.
Officer induction covers the Code of Conduct, Data 
Protection, Anti Fraud Corruption and Bribery, IT 
Security, Whisleblowing, Financial Procedure Rules 
(all sign for apart from Code of Conduct) 

 

Members Induction Pack - Contents  

A1.1 Ensuring members and officers 
behave with integrity and lead a 
culture where acting in the public 
interest is visibly and consistently 
demonstrated thereby protecting the 
reputation of the organisation

Induction for new Members and 
Officers on standard of 
behaviour expected

Officer induction checklist  

P
age 23

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11788/Code-of-Conduct-and-Register-of-Members-Interests
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Members%20Induction%20Pack%20-%20Contents%20(Nov%2018).docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/officer%20induction%20checklist.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/The_Deal%5b1%5d.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Register%20of%20Interests%20Form%20v2.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Members%20Induction%20Pack%20-%20Contents%20(Nov%2018).docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/officer%20induction%20checklist.doc


The Appraisal and Performance Assessment 
process ensures that Officers are clear about what 
is expected of them.

 Performance appraisals

Staff Intranet : Appraisal  
Torridge Strategic Plan 2016-20  

Constitution Part 5  

A1.2

Corporate Induction 2016 - audit  

 

Ensuring members take the lead in 
establishing specific operating 
principles or values for the 
organisation and its staff and that 
they are communicated and 
understood. These should build on 
the Seven Principles of Public Life 
(the Nolan Principles)

Communicating shared values 
with members, Officers, the 
community and partners

Members Induction Includes Standards and ethics  

The decision making practises of the Council are set 
out in Part 1 of the Constitution. The two decision 
making bodies are Community & Resources 
Committee and Full Council and the public are 
invited to attend and speak at these meetings.

 Decision making practises

Constitution Part 1  
Declaration of interests made at 
meetings

Plans Committee - Declaration of Interests  

Conduct at meetings Constitution Part 2 - Articles  
Shared values guide decision 
making

O&S External Minutes August 2018 (Community Safety)  

A1.3 Leading by example and using the 
above standard operating principles 
or values as a framework for 
decision making and other actions

Develop and maintain an 
effective Standards Committee

Standard Committee meets on a regular basis  

P
age 24

http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=3903
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Torridge%20Strategic%20Plan%202016-20.pdf
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/corporate%20induction%202016%20-%20audit.pptx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Induction%20Day%20presentation.pdf
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Plans%20Minutes%20September%202018.pdf
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/O&S%20External%20Minutes%20-%20August%202018.pdf
https://democracy.torridge.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=156&Year=0


Anti-Fraud and Corrption 
policies are working effectively

Anti Fraud Corruption & Bribery Policy  

Example Register of Members Interests  Up-to-date register of interests 
(Members and Officers)

Register of Interests Form  
Register of Members Gifts  Up-to-date register of gifts and 

hospitality
Officer Gifts and Hospitality Register  
Whistleblowing policy  
Officers whistleblowing guide  

Whistleblowing policies are in 
place and protect individuals 
raising concerns

Managers Whistleblowing Guide  

Whistleblowing policy has been 
made available to members of 
the public, Officers, partners and 
contractors.

TDC Website  

Complaints Procedure  Complaints policy and examples 
of responding to complaints 
about behaviour Example Complaint Response re Officer Behaviour  
Changes/improvements as a 
result of complaints received 
and acted upon

Email sent internally to improve process  

Members and Officers Code of 
Conduct refers to a requirement 
to declare interests

Constitution Part 5  

A1.4 Demonstrating, communicating and 
embedding the standard operating 
principles or values through 
appropriate policies and processes 
which are reviewed on a regular 
basis to ensure that they are 
operating effectively.

Minutes show declarations of 
interest were sought and 
appropriate declarations made

C&R Minutes showing Member Declarations - Aug 2018  

P
age 25

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Anti%20Fraud,%20Corruption%20&%20Bribery%20Strategy%202017.docx
https://democracy.torridge.gov.uk/mgDeclarationSubmission.aspx?UID=110&HID=38&FID=0&HPID=187427
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Register%20of%20Interests%20Form%20v2.doc
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=9281&p=0
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12766/Gifts-and-Hospitality-Register
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Whistleblowing%20Policy%202017.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Manager's%20Guide%20triple%20fold%202017.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Manager's%20Guide%20triple%20fold%202017.doc
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/12738/Whistle-blowing-Policy
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Complaints%20Procedure%20Pamphlet%20May%2018.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Mr%20Miller%20-%20signed%20copy.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/FW%20A%20Garside%20Complaint.msg
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/C&R%20Minutes%20august%202018.doc


A2  Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values 90%
Doing Business with the Council  Scrutiny of ethical decision 

making Standard Committee meets on a regular basis  
A2.1 Seeking to establish, monitor 

and maintain the 
organisation’s ethical 
standards and performance Championing ethical compliance 

at governing body level
Internal Audit Report - Ethics and Values  

A2.2 Underpinning personal 
behaviour with ethical values 
and ensuring they permeate 
all aspects of the 
organisation’s culture and 
operation

Provision of ethical awareness 
training

Corporate Induction 2016 - audit  

Appraisal Form - Behaviours  
The Appraisal Check-list asks for "Any conflict of interest 
to declare"

 
Appraisal processes take account 
of values and ethical behaviour

Appraisal Checklist_2018  
The Deal  
Induction and Probation Policy  

Staff appointment policy

Dignity at Work Policy  

A2.3 Developing and maintaining 
robust policies and 
procedures which place 
emphasis on agreed ethical 
values

Procurement policy Doing Business with the Council  
Doing Business with the Council  

All contractual agreements contain reference to Anti 
Bribery and Whistleblowing

 

O&S External - affordability of services provided by 1610  

Agreed values in partnership 
working:- Statement of business 
ethics communicates commitment 
to ethical values to external 
suppliers- Ethical values feature in 
contracts with external service 
providers Licensing Committee - Taxi drivers required to receive equality 

training
 

A2.4 Ensuring that external 
providers of service on 
behalf of the organisation 
are required to act with 
integrity and in compliance 
with ethical standards 
expected by the 
organisation.

Protocols for partnership working Partnership Protocol needs 
updating

P
age 26

http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14607/Doing-Business-with-the-Council
https://democracy.torridge.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=156&Year=0
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Culture%20and%20Ethics%20-%20Internal%20Audit%20FINAL%20Report.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/corporate%20induction%202016%20-%20audit.pptx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Appraisal%20form.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Appraisal%20Checklist.docx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/The_Deal%5b1%5d.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Induction___Probation%5b1%5d.pdf
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Dignity_at_Work_Policy%5b1%5d.pdf
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14607/Doing-Business-with-the-Council
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/14607/Doing-Business-with-the-Council
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/O&S%20External%20-%20May%202018.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Licnesing%20Committee%20Minutes%20-%20January%202018.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Licnesing%20Committee%20Minutes%20-%20January%202018.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Partnership%20Protocol.pdf


A3  Respecting the rule of law 100%
A list of statutory obligations maintained by solicitor (legal 
library) for officers to refer to. The Solicitor also sends out 
regular legislation updates to Officers to ensure they are 
aware of any changes. 

 Statutory provisions

Legal Briefing - July 2018  
The scheme of delegation clearly identifies officers legal 
powers under relevant legislation

 

Constitution Part 3 - Delegations  

Reports all require a consideration of financial, legal, HR, 
sustainability implications etc. Reports cannot be included 
on an agenda unless cleared by SFO or nominated 
finance staff

 

Report Writers Protocol and Guidance  

The Solicitor attends committee to give appropriate legal 
advice

 

Statutory guidance is followed 

Solicitor Advice to Plans Committee - Minute 55b  

A3.1 Ensuring members and staff 
demonstrate a strong 
commitment to the rule of 
the law as well as adhering 
to relevant laws and 
regulations

Constitution Constitution Part 2 - Articles  

Job specifications in place for the three statutory posts 
(HOPS, Sn151 Officer and Monitoring officer)

 Job Descriptions/Specifications

CHIEF EXECUTIVE JD  PS  
Complaince with CIPFA's 
Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Finance Officer in Local 
Government (CIPFA 2015)

Annual Governance Statement  

Terms of Reference Constitution Part 3 - Committee Terms of Reference  

A3.2 Creating the conditions to 
ensure that the statutory 
officers, other key post 
holders, and members, are 
able to fulfil their 
responsibilities in 
accordance with legislative 
and regulatory requirements

Committee Support Democratic Services work schedule 2018/19  

P
age 27

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Legal%20Briefing%20-%20July%202018.msg
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
http://intranet.torridge.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=2869
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/plans%20committee%20-%20october%202018.doc
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/CHIEF%20EXECUTIVE%20JD%20%20PS.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%202017-18%20Approved.pptx
http://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/11933/Constitution
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/May%202018%20-%20May%202019.docx


A3.3 Striving to optimise the use 
of the full powers available 
for the benefit of its citizens, 
communities and other 
stakeholders

Record of legal advice provided 
by Officers

Database for Data Subject Access Requests - Proof of Life Enquiries  

Role of Monitoring Officer clearly defined  

Solicitor JD PS  

Monitoring Officer provisions

Monitoring Officer is the Lead Officer for the Standards 
Committee and carries out any investigations. Staff 
disciplinary investigations are manged by HR.

 

Record of legal advice provided 
by Officers

Database for Data Subject Access Requests - Proof of Life Enquiries  

A3.4 Dealing with breaches of 
legal and regulatory 
provisions effectively 

Statutory provisions A list of statutory obligations maintained by solicitor (legal 
library) for officers to refer to. The Solicitor also sends out 
regular legislation updates to Officers to ensure they are 
aware of any changes. 

 

Effective Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption policies and 
procedures

Anti Fraud Corruption & Bribery Policy  A3.5 Ensuring corruption and 
misuse of power are dealt 
with effectively.

Local test of assurance (where 
appropriate)

Standard Committee meets on a regular basis  

Statement on the Role of the Chief Finance Officer in Local Government (CIPFA 2015)
Illustrative Text for Local Code of Conduct (DCLG, 2012)
LGA Template of Code of Conduct
Codes of Ethics for Local Public Service Managers - Consultation (Solace, 2015)
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014)
Ethics in Practice: Promoting Ethical Standards in Public Life (Committee on Standards in 
Public Life, 2014)

Further Guidance

Stanards Matter: A Review of Best Practice in Promoting Good Behaviour in Public Life 
(Committee on Standards in Public Life, 2013)

P
age 28

file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Database%20for%20Data%20Subject%20Access%20Requests%20-%20Proof%20of%20Life%20Enquiries.xlsx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Solicitor%20JD%20PS.doc
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Database%20for%20Data%20Subject%20Access%20Requests%20-%20Proof%20of%20Life%20Enquiries.xlsx
file:///C:/Users/chris.dobbs/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Supporting%20Evidence/Anti%20Fraud,%20Corruption%20&%20Bribery%20Strategy%202017.docx
https://democracy.torridge.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=156&Year=0


 
Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2 1AG.  A list of members is available from our 

registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).  GTIL and the 

member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate one another and are not liable for one another’s acts 

or omissions. Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details. 

 

 
 

 

Steve Hearse 
Strategic Manager - Resources 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
 

7 January 2019 

Dear Steve 

Certification work for Torridge District Council for year ended 31 March 2018 

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by Torridge District 
Council ('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after the 
claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the Council's 
entitlement to funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer 
Audit Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) took on the transitional responsibilities for HB COUNT issued by the Audit 
Commission in February 2015. 

We have certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2017/18 relating to 
subsidy claimed of £17.2 million. Further details are set out in Appendix A. 

We identified a number of issues from our certification work, which we wish to highlight for 
your attention. These are set out in Appendix A. 

As a result of the errors identified, the claim was amended.  We reported our observations to 
the DWP on 23 November 2018. The DWP may require the Council to undertake further 
work or provide assurances on our observations. 

The indicative fee for 2017/18 for the Council was based on the final 2015/16 certification 
fees, reflecting the amount of work required by the auditor to certify the Housing Benefit 
subsidy claim that year. The indicative scale fee set by PSAA for the Council for 2017/18 was 
£8,220. This is set out in more detail in Appendix B. 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
2 Glass Wharf 
Bristol 
BS2 0EL 
 
T +44 (0)117 305 7600 
F +44 (0)117 305 7784 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 2 

Appendix A - Details of claims and returns certified for 2017/18 

Claim or 
return 

Value Amended? Amendment 
value 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy claim 

£17,159,805 Yes -£4,501 No The reduction in subsidy is 
due to the misclassification 
error noted below where 
amounts were reclassified 
into cells that attract nil 
subsidy. 

 

Findings from certification of housing benefits subsidy claim 
 
We reported our observations to the DWP on the following issues: 
 
Deduction for breakfast 
We identified 3 instances out of 19 cases tested where the Authority had applied a breakfast 
deduction where no breakfast had been provided.  As there is no eligibility to subsidy for 
benefit that has not been paid these were not classified as errors for subsidy purposes.   
 
Applicable amount 
We identified 1 instance out of 20 cases tested where the Authority had not updated the 
applicable amount for an additional child.  As there is no eligibility to subsidy for benefit that 
has not been paid this was not classified as errors for subsidy purposes.   
 
 
The claim was amended due to the following issues: 
 
Misclassification 
We identified 1 error out of 19 cases tested where benefit on a Non-HRA rent rebate case 
was misclassified between two cells on the claim.  Officers were able to review the whole of 
the population and we agreed the amendment required to the claim as a result. The audit 
team reviewed and re-performed a sample of the work of the Council with no further issues 
arising. 
 
Self-contained accommodation 
We identified 2 errors out of 19 cases tested where self-contained accommodation had been 
incorrectly classified as bed and breakfast accommodation by the Authority.  Officers were 
able to review the whole of the population in 2017/18 and we agreed the amendment 
required to the claim as a result. The audit team reviewed and re-performed a sample of the 
work of the Council with no further issues arising. 
 
 
Recommended actions for officers 
We recommend that the Council as part of its internal quality assurance process, should 
increase its focus on all areas of testing in respect of the areas where we identified errors from 
our testing.  

Page 30



 3 

Appendix B: Fees for 2017/18 certification work 

Claim or return 2015/16 
fee (£)  

2017/18 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2017/18 
actual fee 
(£) 

Variance 
(£) 

Explanation for variances 

Housing benefits 
subsidy claim 
(BEN01) 

8,220 8,220 8,220 - N/A 

Total 8,220 8,220 8,220   

  

Page 31



1

Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Internal Audit Strategy, Charter and Plan 
Date: 19th February 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To present the annual Internal Audit plan for 2019/20.

1. INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the Council’s Internal Audit function is to provide, through the Audit & 
Governance Committee, an independent and objective opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s arrangements for the governance, risk management and controls 
implemented to achieve the Council’s agreed objectives. 

Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016, which state: “A relevant authority must undertake an effective 
internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, and taking into account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”.

The Annual Internal Audit opinion forms part of the framework of assurances that the 
Council receives and is designed to be used to help inform the Annual Governance 
Statement. To provide an objective, evidence-based opinion, a wide ranging 
programme of audits are planned covering many aspects of the Council’s operations 
including where this may be delivered through partnerships and contracts. 

The Audit & Governance Committee, at the meeting on 29th November 2016, 
recommended that Torridge join the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) with effect from 
1 April 2017 for a period of seven years with a review after 5 years (also providing 
Torridge with representation on the Partnership Committee). This was agreed by Full 
Council on 5 December 2016. The annual internal audit plan is now delivered by DAP 
on this basis. 

2. REPORT

Responsibility
As from April 2013 all local authority auditors have a mandatory requirement to comply 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which have been adopted by 
both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA) and the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). CIPFA remains the organisation responsible for 
setting the standards for internal audit in local authorities, and have supplemented the 
PSIAS with a Local Government Application Note (LGAN). The requirements of the 
PSIAS are based on the standards set by the IIA with a limited number of additional 
requirements and interpretations that allow the PSIAS to be adopted by local 
authorities.  

The Standards require that the Head of Internal Audit (for Torridge this is the 
Governance Manager and the Audit Manager from DAP) must “establish risk-based 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9



2

plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
organisation’s goals”.  When completing these plans, the Head of Internal Audit should 
take account of the organisation’s risk management framework. The plan should be 
adjusted and reviewed, as necessary, in response to changes in the organisation’s 
business, risk, operations, programs, systems and controls. The plan must take 
account of the requirement to produce an internal audit opinion and assurance 
framework.

Professional Standards
Devon Audit Partnership ensures that it meets all current, relevant professional 
guidance. DAP internal audit activity conforms to the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

In December 2016 DAP welcomed Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire 
Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager, who 
completed an external validation of the Partnership. Terry and Chris concluded that;
“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms * to the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the 
Code of Ethics and the Standards.

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a 
charter, policies and processes that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards

The review team found areas of good practice and high standards, including:
 The partnership is well established and has gained an extremely good reputation 

with its member councils.  The review team received consistently positive feedback 
about DAP from client officers and audit committee members.

 The auditors conduct themselves in a professional manner, display knowledge of 
the areas they are auditing, adopt a flexible approach and are seen to be 
responsive to the needs of the client.

 Audit assignments are well planned and testing is directed to those areas of 
greatest importance. Working papers within the Partnership’s Audit Management 
System (MKInsight) are completed to a good standard.

 You can see the full report from Terry and Chris at:
https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/professional-standards/

How the Annual Audit Plan was Developed
The Internal Audit Plan has been prepared using a risk-based approach. The intention 
is that audit resource is focused on the key areas of risk, helping to provide assurance 
that key risks are identified, understood and effectively managed. We have sought 
input from the Head of Paid Service and Strategic Manager (Resources) and also took 
account of any concerns identified by SMT and OMT, the Audit & Governance 
Committee, and new and emerging risks as identified via the Council’s Risk 
Management arrangements. 

We have identified a few areas where we can place reliance on other sources of 
assurance, such as for the Crematorium where North Devon Council’s auditors provide 
assurance on the financial controls; and for benefit subsidies and the Financial 
Accounts where we rely on the External Auditor’s assurance. Our External Auditors 
(Grant Thornton) approach does not require them to place reliance on the work of 
Internal Audit, although they should draw from the observations and conclusions of 
Internal Audit. This may cause some sense of duplicated effort for the clients and we 
continue to schedule audits so that key service departments, such as Finance and 
Revenues & Benefits and Accountancy, do not feel swamped by auditors.

Page 33

https://www.devonaudit.gov.uk/why-choose-dap/professional-standards/


3

Resources
Torridge has joined DAP as a full member; DAP are responsible for delivering the 
internal audit plan on behalf of Torridge. 
 
The 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan will enable the delivery of 164 audit days plus 16 days 
for audit management. Contingency (for additional audits and/or investigatory work) 
will continue to be provided by requesting additional days from DAP. The Devon Audit 
Partnership will continue to ensure that only auditors with relevant knowledge, skills 
and experience will be used. The Partnership Agreement underpins the quality and 
performance levels required. 

The Governance Team will provide the elements of the internal audit function which 
have been retained in-house such as co-ordinating the scheduling of audits; updating 
the SPAR records with agreed actions; monitoring progress with actions; reporting to 
Committee; carrying out customer satisfaction surveys to help DAP improve the audit 
service where appropriate; monitoring performance and maintaining the internal audit 
performance indicator records; dealing with management enquiries; and producing the 
Audit & Governance Newsletter as and when required. 

It has been agreed that DAP will deliver the Internal Audit plan for a period of seven 
years (with a review after 5 years). However should Torridge wish to exit the 
partnership arrangement then we can trigger the clause by submitting notice to exit 
allowing a 12 twelve month period to quit.

Any work or relationships which may affect the independence and objectivity of the 
auditors are required to be disclosed under auditing standards. There are no matters to 
disclose for 2018/19 and 2019/20.  

A breakdown of audit days is provided at Appendix C as part of the detailed internal 
audit plan for 2019/20.  

Progress Reporting and Flexibility of the Plan
As in previous years the plan sets out the work intended to be covered during 2019/20 but 
it also recognises that risks may change during the year and this may require some 
amendment or flexibility of the plan. The contingency arrangements will allow for some 
flexibility and progress with the plan will be reported via the audit newsletter and any 
changes will also be agreed with management and reported to Committee.

Considerations for the Audit & Governance Committee
Members of the Committee may want to consider the following:

 Does the detailed internal audit plan for the coming financial year (see Appendix C) 
reflect the areas that the Audit & Governance Committee believe should be 
covered as priority?

 Does the updated Internal Audit Strategy (see Appendix A) explain how the internal 
audit service will be delivered and how it links to the Council’s organisational 
objectives and priorities?

 Does the Internal Audit Charter (see Appendix B) clearly set out the scope and 
responsibilities of the Internal Audit service? 

 Does the audit plan include all those areas that the Audit Committee would expect 
to be subject to internal audit coverage, both in terms of our professional 
responsibilities as well as covering areas of concern flagged by management and 
Members?

Page 34



4

 Is the level of audit resource accepted by the Committee and agreed as 
appropriate, given the level of assurance required?

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2016.

Financial Implications
The Audit & Governance Committee should ensure there are sufficient resources for 
the completion of the audit plan.

Human Resources Implications
The Senior Solicitor, the Head of Paid Services, the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
and the Governance Manager have been consulted on the arrangements. Devon Audit 
Partnership would look to continue the arrangement to assign an auditor to be the key 
auditor for the Authority, although specialist auditors will be used as required. 

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
Internal audit will aim to support equality and diversity considerations through its 
recommendations to management

Risk Management
The audit plan has been developed taking into account the risks and risk management 
arrangements across the Authority. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
CIPFA guidance, IIA standards and the Audit Strategy 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views

Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, commented “It is 
important that Internal Audit has a plan in place to ensure that all necessary areas are 
included in order to ensure that the Council provides both Value for Money and provides 
the required level of assurance of the control processes across the Council’s services.” 

4. CONCLUSIONS
The risk based audit plan for 2019/20 has been developed based on 180 audit days 
from Devon Audit Partnership, and support from the Governance Team (approximately 
40 days). DAP will provide the 2019/20 Annual Opinion for consideration at the July 
2020 Committee meeting. 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Members are recommended to:

 Approve the Internal Audit Plan
 Note and agree the Internal Audit Strategy
 Note and agree the Internal Audit Charter

Page 35



5

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Head of Paid Service
Governance Manager
Strategic Management Team
Devon Audit Partnership
Chair of Audit & Governance

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs, Service Improvement Officer

Background Papers: Audit Files
Internal Audit Strategy (Appendix A)
Internal Audit Charter (Appendix B)

Page 36



6

Appendix A

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY (February 2019)

1 INTRODUCTION

Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 
2015, which state:

5.—(1) A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account 
public sector internal auditing standards (PSIAS) or guidance.

In addition, the Local Government Act 1972, Section 151, requires every local authority to designate an 
officer to be responsible for the proper administration of its financial affairs. In the Council, the Strategic 
Director (resources) is the ‘Section 151 Officer’. One of the ways in which this duty is discharged is by 
maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit service.

The PSIAS refers to the role of Chief Internal Auditor, and requires this officer to ensure and deliver a 
number of key elements to support the internal audit arrangements. For The Council, the role of Chief 
Internal Auditor is provided by the Head of Devon Audit Partnership.

The PSIAS require the Head of Devon Audit Partnership to produce an Audit Strategy, which:

 is a high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed in 
accordance with the Charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities; 

 will communicate the contribution that Internal Audit makes to the organisation and should 
include:

• internal audit objectives and outcomes;
• how the Head of Devon Audit Partnership will form and evidence his opinion on the 

governance, risk and control framework to support the Annual Governance Statement;
• how Internal Audit’s work will identify and address significant local and national issues and 

risks;
• how the service will be provided, and
• the resources and skills required to deliver the Strategy.

 should be approved, but not directed, by the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Strategy should be kept up to date with the organisation and its changing priorities.

2 INTERNAL AUDIT OBJECTIVES AND OUTCOMES

The primary objective of Internal Audit is to provide an independent and objective opinion to the Council 
on the governance, risk and control framework by evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the 
organisation’s objectives through examining, evaluating and reporting on their adequacy as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient use of resources.

To achieve this primary objective, the Head of Devon Audit Partnership aims to fulfil the statutory 
responsibilities for Internal Audit by:

Page 37



7

 identifying all of the systems, both financial and non-financial, that form the Council’s control 
environment and governance framework, and contribute to it meeting its obligations and 
objectives – the ‘Audit Universe’;

 creating an audit plan providing audit coverage on the higher risk areas in the Audit Universe;
 undertaking individual audit reviews, to the standards set by the PSIAS, to independently 

evaluate the effectiveness of internal control;
 providing managers with an opinion on, and recommendations to improve, the effectiveness of 

risk management, control and governance processes;
 providing managers with advice and consultancy on risk management, control and governance 

processes;
 liaising with the Council’s external auditors to ensure efficient use of scarce audit resources 

through the avoidance of duplication wherever possible; and
 providing the Council, through the Audit & Governance Committee, with an opinion on 

governance, risk and control framework as a contribution to the Annual Governance Statement.

3 OPINION ON THE GOVERNANCE, RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

As stated above, one of the key objectives of Internal Audit is to communicate to management an 
independent and objective opinion on the governance, risk and control framework, and to prompt 
management to implement agreed actions.

Significant issues and risks are to be brought to the attention of the S.151 Officer as and when they 
arise. Regular formal meetings should also be held to discuss issues arising and other matters.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will report progress against the annual audit plan and any 
emerging issues and risks to the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will also provide a written annual report to the Audit & Governance 
Committee, timed to support their recommendation to approve the Annual Governance Statement, to the 
Council.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership’s annual report to the Audit & Governance Committee will:

(a) include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk 
and control framework;

(b) disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the qualification;
(c) present a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, including reliance placed 

on work by other assurance streams;
(d) draw attention to any issues the Head of Devon Audit Partnership judges particularly relevant to 

the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;
(e) compare the audit work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and summarise the 

performance of the internal audit function against its performance measures and targets; and
(f) comment on compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and communicate the 

results of the internal audit quality assurance programme.

4 PLANNING, INCLUDING LOCAL AND NATIONAL ISSUES AND RISKS

The audit planning process includes the creation of and ongoing revision of an “audit universe”. This 
seeks to identify all risks, systems and processes that may be subject to an internal audit review. 

The audit universe will include a risk assessment scoring methodology that takes account of a number of 
factors including: the Council’s own risk score; value of financial transactions; level of change, impact on 

Page 38



8

the public; political sensitivity; when last audited; and the impact of an audit. This will inform the basis of 
the resources allocated to each planned audit area.

The results from the audit universe will be used in creating an annual audit plan; such a plan will take 
account of emerging risks at both local and national level.  

Assignment planning

Further planning and risk assessment is required at the commencement of each individual audit 
assignment to establish the scope of the audit and the level of testing required. 

5 PROVISION OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Internal Audit for The Council is provided by Devon Audit Partnership

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership has established policies and procedures in an Audit Manual to 
guide staff in performing their duties and complying with the latest available PSIAS guidance. The 
manual is reviewed and updated to reflect changes in working practices and standards.

Internal Audit Performance Management and Quality Assurance

The PSIAS state that the Head of Devon Audit Partnership should have in place an internal performance 
management and quality assurance framework; this framework must include:

• a comprehensive set of targets to measure performance. These should be regularly monitored 
and the progress against these targets reported appropriately;

• seeking user feedback for each individual audit and periodically for the whole service;
• a periodic review of the service against the Strategy and the achievement of its aims and 

objectives. The results of this should inform the future Strategy and be reported to the Audit & 
Governance Committee;

• internal quality reviews to be undertaken periodically to ensure compliance with the PSIAS and 
the Audit Manual (self-assessment); and

• an action plan to implement improvements.

Performance Measures and targets 

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will closely monitor the performance of the team to ensure agreed 
targets are achieved. A series of performance indicators have been developed for this purpose (please 
see over).

Internal Audit Performance Monitoring Targets.

Performance Indicator Full year target
Percentage of Audit Plan completed 90%

Customer Satisfaction - % satisfied or very satisfied as 
per feedback forms 

90%

Draft reports produced with target number of days 
(currently 15 days)

90%

Final reports produced within target number of days 
(currently 10 days)

90%

Page 39



9

There are a number of other indicators that are measured as part of the audit process that will be 
captured and reported to senior management.  

Task Performance measure

Agreement of Annual audit plan Agreed by Head of Paid Service, SMT and Audit & 
Governance Committee prior to start of financial 
year

Agreement of assignment brief Assignment briefs are agreed with and provided to 
auditee at least two weeks before planned 
commencement date.

Undertake audit fieldwork Fieldwork commenced at agreed time

Verbal debrief Confirm this took place as expected; was a useful 
summary of the key issues; reflects the findings in 
the draft report.

Draft report Promptly issued within 15 days of finishing our 
fieldwork.
Report is “accurate” and recommendations are both 
workable and useful.

Draft report meeting (if required) Such a meeting was useful in understanding the 
audit issues

Annual internal audit report Prepared promptly and ready for senior 
management consideration by end of May.
Report accurately reflects the key issues identified 
during the year.

Presentation of internal audit report to 
management and Audit & Governance 
Committee.

Presentation was clear and concise.
Presented was knowledgeable in subject are and 
able to answer questions posed by management / 
members.

Contact with the audit team outside of 
assignment work.

You were successfully able to contact the person 
you needed, or our staff directed you correctly to the 
appropriate person.
Emails, letters, telephone calls are dealt with 
promptly and effectively.

Once collated the indicators will be reported to the S.151 Officer on a regular basis, and will be 
summarised in an annual report. Performance indicator information will also be presented to the Audit & 
Governance Committee for information and consideration.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership is expected to ensure that the performance and the effectiveness 
of the service improves over time, in terms of both the achievement of targets and the quality of the 
service provided to the user.

Customer (user) feedback

The PSIAS and the Internal Audit Manual state that internal audit performance, quality and effectiveness 
should be assessed at two levels:

 for each individual audit; and
 for the Internal Audit service as a whole.

Page 40



10

Customer feedback is also used to define and refine the audit approach. Devon Audit Partnership will 
seek feedback from:-

 auditees;
 senior management.

The results from our feedback will be reported to Senior Management and the Audit & Governance 
Committee in the annual report. 

Internal quality reviews

Devon Audit Partnership management have completed a self-assessment checklist against the PSIAS 
and have identified that there are no omissions in our practices. We consider that we fully meet over 
92% of the elements; partially meet 5.5%; and are not required to or do not meet 2% (seven) of the 
elements. The self-assessment will be updated annually, and, if management identify areas where we 
could further strengthen our approaches, these will be added to the Quality Action Improvement Plan.

In December 2016 Devon Audit Partnership welcomed Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for 
Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service and his colleague Chris Wood, Audit Manager, who 
completed an external validation of the Partnership.

Terry and Chris concluded that;

“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms* to the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and the 
Standards.”

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes that are judged to 
be in conformance to the Standards

6 RESOURCES AND SKILLS

Resources

The PSIAS and the Audit Manual states that:

 Internal Audit must be appropriately staffed in terms of numbers, grades, qualifications and 
experience, having regard to its responsibilities and objectives, or have access to the appropriate 
resources;

 The Internal Audit service shall be managed by an appropriately qualified professional with wide 
experience of internal audit and of its management; and

 The Chief Internal Auditor (Head of Devon Audit Partnership) should be of the calibre reflecting 
the responsibilities arising from the need to liaise with members, senior management and other 
professionals, and be suitably experienced.

Devon Audit Partnership currently has c.26 staff who operate from any one of our three main locations 
(Plymouth, Torquay and Exeter). The Partnership employs a number of specialists in areas such as 
Computer Audit and Contracts Audit as well as a mix of experienced, professionally qualified and non-
qualified staff.

Page 41



11

The Partnership draws on a range of skilled staff to meet the audit needs. Our current staff (as at 
January 2018) includes:-

 3 x CCAB qualified 
 6 x qualified IIA (including QICA – computer audit)
 1 x studying for IIA
 11 x AAT qualified
 4 x ILM (Institute of Leadership & Management) level 5 or above

Devon Audit Partnership uses MorganKai Insight (MKi) as an audit management system. This system 
allows Partnership management to effectively plan, deliver and report audit work in a consistent and 
efficient manner. The system provides a secure working platform and ensures confidentiality of data. 
The system promotes mobile working, allowing the team to work effectively at client locations or at 
remote locations should the need arise.

Staff Development and Training

Devon Audit Partnership management assess the skills of staff to ensure the right people are available 
to undertake the work required.

Staff keep up to date with developments within internal audit by attending seminars, taking part in 
webinars and conferences, attending training events and keeping up to date on topics via websites and 
professional bodies. Learning from these events helps management to ensure they know what skills will 
be required of our team in the coming years, and to plan accordingly.

Devon Audit Partnership follows formal appraisal processes that identify how employees are developing 
and create training and development plans to address needs. 

Devon Audit Partnership
February 2019

Auditing for achievement

Page 42



12

Appendix B

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER (February 2019)

MISSION

The Mission of Devon Audit Partnership is to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk 
based and objective assurance, advice and insight across its partners.

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

This Charter formally describes the purpose, authority, and principal responsibilities of the Council’s 
Internal Audit Service, which is provided by the Devon Audit Partnership (DAP), and the scope of 
Internal Audit work. This Charter complies with the mandatory requirements of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards.

DEFINITIONS 

Internal auditing is defined by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) as “an independent, 
objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes”.  

The PSIAS set out the requirements of a ‘Board’ and of ‘senior management’. For the purposes of the 
internal audit activity within The Council the role of the Board within the Standards is taken by the 
Council’s Audit & Governance Committee and senior management is the Council’s Strategic 
Management Team.

The PSIAS make reference to the role of “Chief Audit Executive”. For The Council this role is fulfilled by 
the Head of Devon Audit Partnership (HoDAP).

STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

Internal Audit is a statutory service in the context of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 
2015, which state:

5.—(1) A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account 
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance.

In addition, the Local Government Act 1972, Section 151, requires every local authority to designate an 
officer to be responsible for the proper administration of its financial affairs. In the Council, the Strategic 
Director (Resources) is the ‘Section 151 Officer’. One of the ways in which this duty is discharged is by 
maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit service.

Page 43



13

THE PURPOSE AND AIM OF INTERNAL AUDIT

The role of Internal Audit is to understand the key risks of the Council; to examine and evaluate the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the system of risk management and the entire control environment as 
operated throughout the organisation and contribute to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use 
of resources. In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:

 support the Section 151 Officer to discharge his / her statutory duties 
 contribute to and support the Finance function in ensuring the provision of, and promoting the 

need for, sound financial systems
 support the corporate efficiency and resource management processes by conducting value for 

money and efficiency studies and supporting the work of corporate working groups as 
appropriate

 provide a quality fraud investigation service which safeguards public monies.

The existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management to establish systems 
of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner. 

Internal Audit for The Council is provided by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). We aim to provide a high 
quality, professional, effective and efficient Internal Audit Service to the Members, service areas and 
units of The Council, adding value whenever possible. 

PROFESSIONALISM, ETHICS AND INDEPENDENCE

Being Professional

We (Devon Audit Partnership) will adhere to the relevant codes and guidance. In particular, we adhere to 
the Institute of Internal Auditors’ (IIA’s) mandatory guidance including the Definition of Internal Auditing, 
the Code of Ethics, and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. This mandatory guidance constitutes 
principles of the fundamental requirements for the professional practice of internal auditing within the 
public sector and for evaluating the effectiveness of Internal Audit's performance. The IIA's Practice 
Advisories, Practice Guides, and Position Papers will also be adhered to as applicable to guide 
operations. In addition, Internal Audit will adhere to The Council’s relevant policies and procedures and 
the internal audit manual.

Internal Auditors must apply the care and skill expected of a reasonably prudent and competent internal 
auditor. Due professional care does not, however, imply infallibility.

Our Ethics

Internal auditors in UK public sector organisations must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out by The 
Institute of Internal Auditor’s. This Code of Ethics promotes an ethical culture in the profession of internal 
auditing. If individual internal auditors have membership of another professional body then he or she 
must also comply with the relevant requirements of that organisation.

The Code of Ethics extends beyond the definition of internal auditing to include two essential 
components:

1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing;
2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of internal auditors.

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to internal auditors serving others, and applies to both individuals 
and entities that provide internal auditing services. 

Page 44



14

The Code of Ethics promotes an ethical, professional culture. It does not supersede or replace Codes of 
Ethics of employing organisations. Internal auditors must also have regard to the Committee on 
Standards of Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life.

Being Independent

Internal Audit should be independent of the activities that it audits. 

The status of Internal Audit should enable it to function effectively. The support of the Council is 
essential and recognition of the independence of Internal Audit is fundamental to its effectiveness.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership should have direct access to and freedom to report in his or her 
own name and without fear or favour to, all officers and members and particularly to those charged with 
governance (the Audit & Governance Committee). In the event of the necessity arising, the facility also 
exists for Internal Audit to have direct access to the Head of Paid Service, the S.151 Officer and the 
Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Council should make arrangements for Internal Audit to have adequate budgetary resources to 
maintain organisational independence.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership should have sufficient status to facilitate the effective discussion of 
audit strategies, audit plans, audit reports and action plans with senior management and members of the 
Council.

Auditors should be mindful of being independent. They;

 Must have an objective attitude of mind and be in a sufficiently independent position to be able to 
exercise judgment, express opinions and present recommendations with impartiality;

 Notwithstanding employment by the Partnership / Council, must be free from any conflict of 
interest arising from any professional or personal relationships or from any pecuniary or other 
interests in an activity or organisation which is subject to audit;

 Must be free from undue influences which either restrict or modify the scope or conduct of their 
work or significantly affect judgment as to the content of the internal audit report; and

 Must not allow their objectivity to be impaired by auditing an activity for which they have or have 
had responsibility.

AUTHORITY

Internal Audit, with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and information, is 
authorised full, free, and unrestricted access to any and all of the organisation's records, physical 
properties, and personnel pertinent to carrying out any engagement. 

All employees are requested to assist Internal Audit in fulfilling its roles and responsibilities. This is 
enforced in the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 section 5(2-3) that state that:

Any officer or member of a relevant authority must, if required to do so for the purposes of
the internal audit—

(2) (a) make available such documents and records; and
(b) supply such information and explanations; as are considered necessary by those conducting 

the internal audit.
(3) In this regulation “documents and records” includes information recorded in an electronic 

form.

Page 45



15

In addition, Internal Audit, through the HoDAP, where deemed necessary, will have unrestricted access 
to:  

 the Head of Paid Service
 Members 
 individual Senior Managers
 Section 151 Officer
 Monitoring Officer 
 all authority employees 
 all authority premises.

ACCOUNTABILITY 

Devon Audit Partnership is a shared service established and managed via a Partnership Committee and 
Board with representation from each of the founding partners. The Partnership operates as a separate 
entity from the client authorities and Internal Audit is therefore independent of the activities which it 
audits. This ensures unbiased judgements essential to proper conduct and the provision of impartial 
advice to management. Devon Audit Partnership operates within a framework that allows the following:  

 unrestricted access to senior management and members 
 reporting in its own name 
 separation from line operations

Every effort will be made to preserve objectivity by ensuring that all audit members of audit staff are free 
from any conflicts of interest and do not, ordinarily, undertake any non-audit duties.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership fulfils the role of Chief Audit Executive at the Authority and will 
confirm to the Audit & Governance Committee, at least annually, the organisational independence of the 
internal audit activity.

The Strategic Director (Resources) ‘Section 151 Officer’ will liaise with the Head of Devon Audit 
Partnership and is therefore responsible for monitoring performance and ensuring independence.
Internal Auditors must exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating, and 
communicating information about the activity or process being examined. Internal Auditors must make a 
balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly influenced by their own 
interests or by others in forming judgments. 
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership reports functionally to the Audit & Governance Committee on 
items such as:  

 approving the internal audit charter;
 approving the risk based internal audit plan; 
 receiving reports from the Head of Devon Audit Partnership on the section’s performance against 

the plan and other matters;
 approving the Head of Devon Audit Partnership’s annual report’ 
 approve the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit. 

The HoDAP has direct access to the Chair of Audit & Governance Committee and has the opportunity to 
meet with the Audit & Governance Committee in private.

Page 46



16

RESPONSIBILITIES 

The Head of Paid Service and other senior officers are responsible for ensuring that internal control 
arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing their services. 
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will provide assurance to the Council’s ‘Section 151 Officer’ 
regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s financial framework, helping meet obligations 
under the LGA 1972 Section 151.
The HoDAP will provide assurance to the Monitoring Officer in relation to the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the systems of governance within the Council helping her meet her obligations under the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Council’s Constitution. The HoDAP will also work with 
the Monitoring Officer to ensure the effective implementation of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 

Internal Audit responsibilities include but are not limited to:

 examining and evaluating the soundness, adequacy and application of the Council’s systems of 
internal control, risk management and corporate governance arrangements;  

 reviewing the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information and the means used to 
identify, measure, classify and report such information;

 reviewing the systems established to ensure compliance with those policies, plans, procedures 
and regulations which could have a significant impact on operations;

 reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying the existence of such 
assets;

 investigating alleged fraud and other irregularities referred to the service by management, or 
concerns of fraud or other irregularities arising from audits, where it is considered that an 
independent investigation cannot be carried out by management;

 appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed and the 
quality of performance in carrying out assigned duties including Value for Money Studies;

 working in partnership with other bodies to secure robust internal controls that protect the 
Council's interests;

 advising on internal control implications of new systems;
 providing consulting and advisory services related to governance, risk management and control 

as appropriate for the organisation;  
 being responsible for reporting significant risk exposures and control issues identified to the Audit 

& Governance Committee and to senior management, including fraud risks, governance issues.

INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT

The PSIAS describe the requirement for the management of the internal audit function. This sets out 
various criteria that the HoDAP (as Chief Audit Executive) must meet, and includes:

 be appropriately qualified;
 determine the priorities of, deliver and manage the Council’s internal audit service through a risk 

based annual audit plan; 
 regularly liaise with the Council’s external auditors to ensure that scarce audit resources are used 

effectively;
 include in the plan the approach to using other sources of assurance if appropriate;
 be accountable, report and build a relationship with the Council’s Audit & Governance Committee 

and S.151 Officer; and
 monitor and report upon the effectiveness of the service delivered and compliance with 

professional and ethical standards. 
These criteria are brought together in an Audit Strategy which explains how the service will be delivered 
and reflect the resources and skills required.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership is required to give an annual audit opinion on the governance, risk 
and control framework based on the audit work done.

Page 47



17

The HoDAP should also have the opportunity for free and unfettered access to the Head of Paid Service 
and meet periodically with the Monitoring Officer and S.151 Officer to discuss issues that may impact on 
the Council’s governance, risk and control framework and agree any action required.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND RESOURCES
At least annually, the Head of Devon Audit Partnership will submit to the Audit & Governance Committee 
a risk-based internal audit plan for review and approval. The HoDAP will:

 develop, in consultation with Heads of Service, an annual audit plan based on an understanding 
of the significant risks to which the organisation is exposed;

 submit the plan to the Audit & Governance Committee for review and agreement;
 implement the agreed audit plan;
 maintain a professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills and experience to carry out the 

plan and carry out continuous review of the development and training needs;
 maintain a programme of quality assurance and a culture of continuous improvement.

The internal audit plan will include timings as well as budget and resource requirements for the next 
fiscal year. The Head of Internal Audit will communicate the impact of resource limitations and significant 
interim changes to senior management and the Audit & Governance Committee. 

Internal Audit resources must be appropriately targeted by assessing the risk, materiality and 
dependency of the Council’s systems and processes. Any significant deviation from the approved 
Internal Audit plan will be communicated through the periodic activity reporting process.
It is a requirement of the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy that the Head of Devon Audit 
Partnership be notified of all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety. All reported 
irregularities will be investigated in line with established strategies and policies. The audit plan will also 
include sufficient resource to carry out proactive anti-fraud work. 

Internal Audit activities will be conducted in accordance with Council strategic objectives and established 
policies and procedures.

Monitoring of Internal Audit’s processes is carried out on a continuous basis by Internal Audit 
management, and the Council’s members and management may rely on the professional expertise of 
the Head of the Devon Audit Partnership to provide assurance. From time to time, independent review is 
carried out: for example, through peer reviews; ensuring compliance with the PSIAS is an essential 
approach to such a review.

REPORTING

The primary purpose of Internal Audit reporting is to communicate to management within the 
organisation information that provides an independent and objective opinion on governance, the control 
environment and risk exposure and to prompt management to implement agreed actions.

Internal Audit should have direct access and freedom to report in their own name and without fear or 
favour to, all officers and members, particularly to those charged with governance (the Audit & 
Governance Committee).

A written report will be prepared for every internal audit project and issued to the appropriate manager 
accountable for the activities under review.  Reports will include an ‘opinion’ on the risk and adequacy of 
controls in the area that has been audited, which, together, will form the basis of the annual audit opinion 
on the overall control environment.

Page 48



18

The aim of every Internal Audit report should be:

 to give an opinion on the risk and controls of the area under review, building up to the annual 
opinion on the control environment; and

 to recommend and agree actions for change leading to improvement in governance, risk 
management, the control environment and performance.

The Manager will be asked to respond to the report in writing, within 30 days, although this period can be 
extended by agreement. The written response must show what actions have been taken or are planned 
in relation to each risk or control weakness identified. If action is not to be taken this must also be stated. 
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership is responsible for assessing whether the manager’s response is 
adequate. 

Where deemed necessary, the Internal Audit report will be subject to a follow-up, normally within six 
months of its issue, in order to ascertain whether the action stated by management in their response to 
the report has been implemented.  

The Head of the Devon Audit Partnership will 

 submit periodic reports to the Audit & Governance Committee summarising key findings of 
reviews and the results of follow-ups undertaken;

 submit on an annual basis an Annual Internal Audit Report to the Audit & Governance 
Committee, incorporating an opinion on the Council’s control environment, which will also inform 
the Annual Governance Statement.

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Council’s Audit & Governance Committee will act as the Board as defined in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS),

The Specific Functions of the Audit & Governance Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution.

The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will assist the Committee in being effective and in meeting its 
obligations. To facilitate this, the HoDAP will:

 attend meetings, and contribute to the agenda;
 ensure that it receives, and understands, documents that describe how Internal Audit will fulfil its 

objectives (e.g. the Audit Strategy, annual work programmes, progress reports);
 report the outcomes of internal audit work, in sufficient detail to allow the committee to 

understand what assurance it can take from that work and/or what unresolved risks or issues it 
needs to address;

 establish if anything arising from the work of the committee requires consideration of changes to 
the audit plan, and vice versa; 

 present an annual report on the effectiveness of the system of internal audit; and
 present an annual internal audit report including an overall opinion on the governance, risk and 

control framework.

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME

The PSIAS states that a quality assurance and improvement programme must be developed; the 
programme should be informed by both internal and external assessments.

Page 49



19

An external assessment must be conducted at least once in five years by a suitably qualified, 
independent assessor. 

In December 2016 Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance for Hertfordshire Shared Internal Audit Service 
completed an external validation of the Partnership.  Terry concluded that;

“It is our overall opinion that the Devon Audit Partnership generally conforms* to the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards, including the Definition of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics 
and the Standards.

* Generally Conforms – This is the top rating and means that the internal audit service has a charter, policies and processes 
that are judged to be in conformance to the Standards

CHARTER – NON CONFORMANCE AND REVIEW

Any instances of non conformance with the Internal Audit Definition, Code of Conduct or the Standards 
must be reported to the Audit & Governance Committee, and in significant cases consideration given to 
inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
The Head of Devon Audit Partnership will advise the Audit & Governance Committee on behalf of the 
Council on the content of the Charter and the need for any subsequent amendment. The Charter should 
be approved and regularly reviewed by the Audit & Governance Committee.

Devon Audit Partnership
February 2019

 Auditing for achievement

Page 50



20

Appendix C

The resultant Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 is set out on the following page.

The audit plan for 2019/20 plan has been created by:

Consideration of the risks identified in the Council’s 
Corporate and Service Risk Registers 

Page 51



21

2019/20 DRAFT Internal Audit Plan

Services
Date of 

last 
audit

DAP
Key 

Systems

DAP
Other 

Systems

DAP 
Management

Governance 
Team

Responsible
Officer

       
Creditors (inc GDPR purge test) 2018/19 10    David Heyes
Main Accounting 2018/19 10    David Heyes
Payroll 2018/19 10    David Heyes
Asset Management 2017/18 5    David Heyes
Treasury Management 2017/18 5    David Heyes
Disabled Facilities Grant 2018/19  2   David Heyes
Council Tax 2018/19 10    Simon Toon
Housing Benefit and CTS 2018/19 15    Simon Toon
NNDR 2018/19 10    Simon Toon
Debtors 2017/18 10    Simon Toon
ICT 2018/19 15    Steve Hearse
Risk Management 2018/19 7    Steve Hearse
Rental Venues 2016/17  6   Adrian Redwood
Housing Renewal (4th Quarter) 2015/16  7   Janet Williams
Northam Burrows 2016/17  5   Sean Kearney
Planning Enforcement 2016/17  5   Sean Kearney
Section 106 2014/15  5   Sean Kearney
TPO (later in year) 2014/15  5   Sean Kearney
Housing Options 2016/17  10   Simon Toon
GDPR (April 2019) 2018/19  5   Staci Dorey
Land Charges (feb/mar 2020) 2015/16  7   Staci Dorey
Monitor DAP/Annual 
Governance/Follow Up Audit 
Work/NFI/Promote Anti Fraud 
Culture/Police 
Queries/Investigations/Audit 
Plan/Audit Newsletter/Committee 
Reports & Meetings/Audit 
Performance Reports

2018/19    40 Jon Walter

Quality Control/Audit Managers 
Opinion/Committee Reports and 
Meetings

2018/19   16  Jon Walter

 DAP 107 57 16.0   
 TOTALS   180.0   

Audits not completed by end of March 2019 - C/f from 2018/19 Plan
Services Days Responsible Officer
Harbours (now scheduled for September 2019) 5 Sean Kearney
Emergency Planning (now scheduled for April 2019) 10 Richard Haste
Income (now scheduled for April 2019) 7 David Heyes

DAP total (paid for in 2018/19) 22

Page 52



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

1

Agenda Item

REPORT OF DAP Partnership Manager
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date
Date: 19th February 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide a summary of the audit reports issued to date to 
enable members to discuss any matters they wish to raise.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular summary of the audit reports issued to 
ensure there is opportunity to raise any queries on those reports. 

Where possible Members are encouraged to raise any significant concerns with the Service 
Improvement Officer at the time of issue of the report, however this report gives the opportunity for 
Members as a group to discuss any related matters.

This committee report covers the audit reports issued to date and not previously reported. 

2. REPORT
A summary of those reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A. 

There are six audits to be reported upon: 
 Car Parks
 Creditors
 ICT Change Management
 VAT
 NNDR
 Main Accounts

3. IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
None.

Financial Implications
None.

Human Resources Implications
None.

Sustainability Implications
None.

Equality/Diversity
None.

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

2

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the level of 
assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control framework. Any 
agreed actions are evaluated against the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those risks 
that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and directly to 
management for them to manage. Progress with implementing actions is reported to the Head of Paid 
Service (or Senior Management Team) and to the Audit & Governance committee on a quarterly basis.
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the Audit 
Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”   

4. CONCLUSIONS
Six reports have been issued since the meeting in July. The opinion for the audits at the time of 
publication was:

Opinion Audit
High Standard
‘Substantial Reliance’

VAT;
Main Accounts

Good Standard
‘No Significant Matters Arising’

Parking Services; 
Creditors;
NNDR;

Marginal
‘Bordering on Unsatisfactory’

ICT Change Management

Opinions range from: High Standard; Good Standard; Improvements Required; Fundamental 
Weaknesses. 

Note: Opinion for the ICT Change Management Audit was based on previously used range of 
opinions (Good, Satisfactory, Marginal, Unsatisfactory). 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS
Committee are asked to:

Note the report issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the seven internal audits in this report.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Officer - Jenny Wallace; Steve Hearse; Staci Dorey
Councillors - Philip Hackett

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 54



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

3

Appendix A
Parking – Good Standard Opinion (high standard rating on 6/8 risk areas, remainder were good)

Introduction 
Torridge District Council operates 22 car parks across the District. All but one of which are Pay & 
Display, and the Seafield Car Park, Westward Ho! is leased annually to a local business. A new car park 
is expected to be developed at Wilkie’s Field in Westward Ho! in the next financial year.

The Parking Services team aim to provide sufficient safe, quality parking at an affordable price for 
Torridge residents and visitors. Off street ‘Pay and Display’ charges apply most days between 8am and 
6pm except Christmas Day and New Years Day. For regular users, weekly tickets are available from the 
Pay & Display machines, whilst season, tourist and business permits are available. The four Civil 
Enforcement Officers (CEOs) who form part of the team are responsible for issuing penalty charge 
notices and ensuring car parks are well maintained and in accordance with government guidance, whilst 
office based staff monitor and manage income and deal with any appeal cases in line with legislation. 
The office based team was reorganised in the first quarter of 2018/19: there is now a Parking Services 
Supervisor (20hrs per week) and a full time Administrator.

The previous audit of this area was conducted in 2015, at which time an assurance level of Good was 
given.

Assurance Opinion on Risks Covered
 

Level of Assurance Direction 
of travel

1 – Failure to comply with legislation or Council policies. High Standard

2 – Unauthorised fees and charges may be introduced or 
tickets could be stolen to hide the misappropriation of 
funds.

High Standard

3 – Amounts relating to the transactions may not have been 
recorded accurately.

High Standard

4 – Appeals procedures may be managed unfairly leading to 
negative publicity for TDC.

High Standard

5 – Income from car parks may not be maximized and/or 
permits could be misused.

Good Standard

 
6 – Machines and equipment may be faulty or income not 
properly accounted for.

Good Standard

7 – Fines imposed may prove to be invalid leading to a loss 
of income and/or negative publicity for TDC. 

High Standard

 
8 – Unauthorised persons could access equipment, 
systems, or steal money from machines.

High Standard

 
These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings can 
be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed with 
management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations And Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the action plan 
agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where agreed 

Executive Summary 
Our review of the Parking Service was completed in November 2018. The work has included 
consideration of whether the service is operated in accordance with legislation and in accordance with 
Council policies; parking charges are in accordance with current legislation; all monies received are 
properly accounted for; challenges and appeals are managed fairly and in line with current guidance; 

Page 55



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

4

machines and equipment are checked and maintained to ensure accuracy of charges and to combat 
fraud, theft or irregularity; cash receipting and General Ledger (GL) system reconciliation’s are 
completed correctly and promptly; staff are proficient and fully trained in their required duties; contracts 
with third parties are effectively managed; and debt recovery processes are effectively managed. 

There have been no strategic changes since the last audit, and operationally there has been little 
change with the same software, same parking machines, substantially the same legislation, and 
substantially the same team of officers delivering the service. There have been some changes to the 
office-based team this financial year, changing from 1.5FTE Administrators to a part time Supervisor 
(20hours) and a full time Administrator, and the previous Bailiff’s contract came to an end in January 
2018 with the last warrants ending in January 2019. The two Bailiff companies now being used are 
‘piggy-backed’ on the Revenues contracts, as this provides an overall saving for the Authority. The new 
Wilkie’s Field car park at Westward Ho! has not been developed as quickly as initially budgeted for but is 
expected to be operational in the next financial year. 

The Pay and Display parking machines are now at the end of their life and a reserve has been 
established for their replacement. The plan is to replace them in the next 12 months. The Civil 
Enforcement Officers (CEOs) use specialised mobile ‘phones to check the payment and parking system 
records and to issue Parking Charge Notices (PCNs). These ‘phones are also at the end of their life and 
are being updated at the time of the audit. 

Well Managed Risks
We found the following risks were well managed with controls in place and operating effectively to 
mitigate the risks:

Risk Controls
R1.  The parking system is operated in accordance with the Authority’s approved policies and 

financial regulations. The issue of penalty charge notices (PCN) is in accordance with 
legislation and the Secretary of States Guidance. There have been no recent amendments to 
fees but historically these have been initiated promptly.

R2.  There is documentary evidence to support all Pay & Display machine ticket transactions, the 
reconciliation of any monies collected and banked by third parties, and any amounts received 
directly by the Authority (i.e. from Parkmobile).

R3.  Income collection and banking are carried out regularly and promptly and arrangements with 
any third parties are properly monitored; All records and accounts are updated correctly and 
the Parking Gateway system and the GL are reconciled on a regular basis.

R4.  There is documentary evidence to demonstrate the correct working, escalation, and 
impartiality of the appeals process.

R7.  There is documentary evidence to support all PCNs and any subsequent cancellations, 
refunds or write-offs.

R8.  Information and data are protected from loss, damage or unauthorized disclosure and all Pay 
& Display/hand held ticketing machines are protected against loss or unauthorised access. 
Access to databases is strictly restricted according to officer roles.

Risks which may be subject to change or where controls could be strengthened
We found the following risks have some effective controls in place but could be further mitigated:

Risk Controls working effectively Areas for strengthening and for 
which further detail and 
recommendations are set out in 
Appendix A

R5.  Procedures are in place to ensure that non-
payment of PCNs are progressed in a timely way 

 The new bailiff arrangements 
should be monitored just prior to 

Page 56



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

5

to maximise the likelihood of effective recovery of 
the amounts. 

 DVLA data requests are dealt with promptly at 28 
days and appropriately in line with legislation to 
provide addresses for the registered keeper of the 
vehicle

 Full payment reminders are sent out in a timely 
manner

 The amounts stated in those letters are accurate
 Any slight DVLA data mismatches such as 

vehicle colours are thoroughly checked prior to 
issue of the Notice to Owner

 The bailiff appointment for Ross and Roberts 
followed a proper tendering procedure, is 
expected to provide value for money and 
complies with the recovery policy and procedures.

 Unpaid debts are pursued according to the 
parking procedures and in accordance with 
national guidance, using bailiffs as necessary and 
only writing off debts when officers are satisfied 
that there is no possibility of recovery of the debt,

March 2019 when the contract is due 
for review to ensure collection rates 
are as expected and operational 
procedures have been adhered to 
with few complaints being received.

R6.  Faulty machines are reported immediately the 
fault is spotted, by the CEOs or by members of 
the public. CEOs visit each car park two to three 
times each day and inspect the machine, the 
signage around the car park and the general 
maintenance of the car parks. The engineer visits 
promptly, with the longest delay reported being 
24hours on which occasion there was valid 
reason.

 Pay & Display machines are maintained on a 
regular basis by Cale Bripark

 Machines are emptied and cash counted 
regularly and independently of the CEOs and 
office staff.  This is through an arrangement with 
North Devon Council.  
.

 Maintenance of pay and display 
machines – Whilst the same 
arrangements have been in place for 
many years a current contract for 
maintenance could not be found on 
file. The latest version was for 
2015/16.  

Previous recommendations 
We verified that all previous recommendations had been implemented or have been included in this 
report.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 57



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

6

Creditors – Good Standard Opinion (high standard rating on 5/6 risk areas, remainder was good)

Introduction 
Accounts Payable is the primary system used by the Authority to pay its creditors. It comprises a 
database of those people and organisations that are owed money by the Authority and includes details 
of what has been and is due to be paid. It links to the eProcurement system whereby electronic orders 
raised by officers are recorded. The two systems operate to record orders and payments and they link 
to the General Ledger through the accounts coding structure and are classified as commitments and 
payments.    

The main objective of the service is to pay the right creditor the right amount at the right time

The previous audit of this area was conducted in January 2018, at which time an assurance level of 
Good was given.

Assurance Opinion on Risks Covered
 

Level of 
Assurance

Direction 
of travel

1 – Transaction or event has not occurred or does not relate to 
audited body.

High
Standard

2 – Amounts relating to the transactions have not been recorded. High
Standard

3 – Amounts relating to the transactions may not have been 
recorded accurately.

High
Standard

4 – Transactions have not been recorded in the correct 
codes/headings.

High
Standard

5 – Payments are not authorised by an appropriate officer. Good
Standard  

6 – Breach of EU Late Payment Directive 2011/7/EU. High
Standard

Executive Summary 
The procedures for processing invoices through the accounts payable system, from receipt of invoices 
by the Exchequer Team through to payment, are well documented, with appropriate separation of duties 
and authorisations. 

Officers are diligent in their duties to ensure that all invoices are valid TDC invoices and that amounts 
are recorded accurately.  Reconciliations are carried out in a timely manner and reviewed by an 
independent officer.

Performance in relation to payment of invoices within terms is monitored on a monthly basis and 
reported on the Council’s performance management system SPAR.   The target set has been exceeded 
each month in the current financial year.

Procedures relating to the use of purchase cards are well controlled, with officers obtaining authorisation 
for expenditure prior to purchasing non fuel items, retaining receipts and submitting authorised purchase 
card logs in a timely manner to the Exchequer Team.  

Page 58



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

7

There is an issue, however, with a number of the monthly purchasing cards logs for fuel at the 
Westcombe depot having been submitted but not appropriately authorised and this needs to be 
addressed.

Well Managed Risks
We found the following risks were well managed with controls in place and operating effectively to 
mitigate the risks:

Risk Controls
R1.  Transaction or event has not occurred or does not relate to audited body.

R2.  Amounts relating to the transactions have not been recorded.

R3.  Amounts relating to the transactions may not have been recorded accurately.

R4.  Transactions have not been recorded in the correct codes/headings.

R6.  Breach of EU Late Payment Directive 2011/7/EU.

Risk which may be subject to change or where controls could be strengthened:

Risk Controls working effectively Areas for strengthening and for which further 
detail and recommendations are set out in 
Appendix A

R5.  The authorisation process for 
purchase order invoices, manual 
orders invoices and non-order invoices 
is operating effectively.

 The majority of the purchasing card 
logs are being authorised and sent to 
the Exchequer team in a timely 
manner, which the exception of one 
service area.

 The authorisation of purchase card logs for fuel is 
not always being sent to the Reconciliation and 
Systems Assistant, despite reminders being sent 
to the appropriate Manager.  The purchase card 
journal entries have continued to be uploaded 
and reflected in the general ledger each month, 
to prevent delay in posting purchasing card 
expenditure.

 

Previous recommendations 
We verified that all previous recommendations had been implemented or have been included in this 
report.  However, one minor point from Appendix D of the previous report has reoccurred, therefore it 
has been noted as a low priority recommendation on the current report.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 59



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

8

ICT Change Management – Marginal Opinion (10/21 controls considered to be effective)

Introduction 
Within the IT industry there is a common consensus that up to 80% of service outages are due to failed 
changes, generally caused by people and process issues. This area, is therefore, is a vital contributor to 
service availability and in delivering new services safely and effectively into live operation. An audit 
needs assessment conducted by DAP identifies IT Change Management as being ‘High Risk’. 

Good IT Change Management helps the ICT Service respond to the customer’s changing business 
requirements while maximizing value and reducing incidents, service disruption and inefficient and time 
consuming rework.  The objective of the change management process is to ensure that changes are 
recorded and then evaluated, authorised, prioritised, planned, tested, implemented, documented and 
reviewed in a controlled manner. 

From the customer perspective, good Change Management helps ICT align change requests with 
business needs, whilst providing greater transparency around actions taken and progress made. 
Corporately, processes help control ‘rogue’ and unauthorised IT solution acquisitions and align with IT 
technical platforms and skill capabilities. 

Effective Change Management can help enhance communication and manage transition of new 
services into live operation. Processes can also dovetail and enhance transitional projects so that 
technological, communication and training requirements are understood and transparent to all 
stakeholders. 

The review undertaken was based on ITIL v3 good practice and it is not expected that an organisation of 
the size of Torridge District Council to achieve a high level of direct compliance with the standard. 
However, the framework provides an effective means of understanding what processes and controls can 
be put in place to add value to the ICT Service and stakeholders alike.

Opinion
This review has found that 10 of the 21 controls reviewed were considered effective.  A further 10 
controls are to be discussed with the ICT Management Team and formally included within a follow-up 
review provisionally planned for next year.    

Management Response

ICT Operational Manager - The ICT Management Team appreciates the hard work and useful 
recommendations in this report. The deployment of Spiceworks has been received very positively by 
operational staff and has already proven to be useful for ICT staff in managing workloads. 

We look forward to reviewing these recommendations early in the New Year and progressing 
appropriate actions during in Q1 of 2019.  

See following page for control table:

Page 60



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

9

KEY CONTROL SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Sept 2018

D
ec  2018

1. Governance & Compliance 
All changes to ICT infrastructure is 
subject to appropriate governance 
and control and roles and 
responsibilities are effectively 
communicated and understood.

ICT changes currently rely on having a core of staff 
who are both knowledgeable and been employed in 
their respective positions for a long period of time.  
There is a need to formalise the way in which IT 
changes are governed and administered. The 
introduction of formal policy and procedures would 
provide a clear baseline for developing the new 
SpiceWorks IT Service Management solution 
(ITSM). 

R R

2. Change Delivery 
Operational procedures (Change 
Management) safeguard the 
continued integrity of DCC's ICT 
infrastructure and service availability.

Current processes do not record sufficiently detailed 
information within a core ITSM. This negates the 
ability to produce basic management information, 
provide transparency and allow for any lessons 
learnt and knowledge to be acquired and shared. 
This limits the ability of the ICT Service to develop 
and improve overall service delivery.
The new SpiceWorks solution provides a one off 
opportunity to introduce new processes to create 
service improvement opportunities that will benefit 
the ICT Service and the wider Council. 

R R

Page 61



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

10

VAT – High Standard Opinion (high standard rating on 7/8 risk areas; remainder was good)

Introduction 
The main legislation governing Value Added Tax (VAT) is the Value Added Tax Act 1994. There have 
been several Notices and Guidelines since then which provide further clarifications and rulings on VAT 
regulations which apply to Local Authorities and other Public Bodies. 

The basic VAT principles require that input tax is claimed on purchases and output tax is accounted for 
on sales; there are non-business activities and exempt suppliers for which there are nominally no VAT 
charges, and Local Authorities and other public bodies are allowed to re-claim the VAT on purchases 
made to support these activities. 

Claims (VAT returns) are made to HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) monthly; any errors subsequently 
identified in the returns also need to be disclosed (failure to do so can result in penalties). Local 
Authorities spend more on VAT than they charge - the “input tax” is therefore greater than the “output 
tax” and a refund is (usually) received from HMRC. It is best practice for Local Authorities to therefore 
submit returns as quickly as possible in order to receive the refund as early as possible. 

The purpose of the audit was to carry out a review of the Council’s VAT procedures undertaken by 
Accountancy Services and inter-related processes. Our review of the VAT system was carried out in 
November 2018. The audit included: compliance with VAT legislation and the Authority’s Financial 
Procedures; accuracy and prompt accounting of Input and Output taxes; correct accounting of VAT in 
the financial management system; authorisation, accuracy and prompt submission of VAT returns to 
HMRC; voluntary disclosures; and effective monitoring and evaluation process. We also reviewed Risk 
Management arrangements for VAT and compliance with CIPFA Guidelines, and accessibility.

Risks Covered Level of Assurance

VAT legislation and the Authority’s Financial Rules are not
complied with

High Standard

Input tax is inaccurate and not promptly recorded in the financial 
systems

High Standard

Output tax is inaccurate and not promptly recorded Good Standard

VAT is not correctly classified on each transaction. High Standard

VAT is not correctly calculated and accounted for by the financial 
management system

High Standard

VAT returns are inaccurate and not submitted in a timely manner High Standard

There is no voluntary disclosure of significant errors which may 
attract penalties from the HMRC when discovered

High Standard

The VAT system is not effectively monitored and evaluated High Standard

Page 62



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

11

Executive Summary
We have concluded that the control framework for VAT is considered to be of a high standard. VAT is 
promptly and correctly accounted for and returns are submitted to HMRC in a timely manner.
A significant improvement since the previous audit has been the development of a sales “Catalogue” 
within the finance system which classifies the catalogue items and services for VAT purposes. This 
means that invoices raised for items in the catalogue are categorised for VAT with no need for the 
officer raising the invoice to apply the correct VAT code/rate.
Minor improvements/changes to procedure have been suggested in relation to the processing and 
claiming bad debt relief and reviewing the Authorities sales
"Catalogue".
Regarding the two recommendations made in the previous audit in 2014/15 we can confirm that 
procedures have been improved to better manage the associated risks. These related to; the claim 
of bad debt relief on debts over 4 years and 6 months old and checking VAT Registration numbers 
of new suppliers.
The detailed findings and recommendations regarding these issues and less important matters are 
described in Appendix A (Detailed Audit Observations and Action Plan) and Appendix D (low priority 
recommendations). Recommendations have been categorised to aid prioritisation. Definitions of the 
priority categories and the assurance opinion ratings are also given in the Appendices to this report.

Value Added
We identified several instances where bad debt relief had been claimed incorrectly. The debts had 
been incorrectly written off when they were less than six months old.

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual
Governance Statement.

No issues for the Annual Governance Statement were identified during this audit.

Page 63



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

12

NNDR – Good Standard Opinion (high standard rating on 2/5 risk areas; remainder were good)

Introduction 
Non-domestic rates, also known as business rates, cover all property consisting of land or buildings not 
classed as domestic property or exempt from rating. Business rates apply to a wide range of property 
regardless of whether they are used for actual business purposes. They apply to, for example, beach 
huts and village halls as well as the shops, offices, and factories more commonly associated with 
business use. If a property has a mix of domestic and non-domestic uses, it will have both a non-
domestic assessment (meaning it could be liable to business rates) and a Council Tax band. New rating 
lists (which contain the rateable values for non-domestic properties) are usually prepared every five 
years. The current list was published on 1 April 2017.

The business rates retention scheme introduced from 1 April 2013, allows Councils to retain a proportion 
of the business rates paid locally so that it may be used to fund local services. This provides a direct 
financial incentive for Councils to work with local businesses to foster a local environment that 
encourages and supports the growth of local businesses. 

Amounts due are calculated as rateable value x national multiplier - reliefs. The rateable value (RV) for 
each property is based on the rental value that the property could reasonably be expected to generate 
on the open market as at the 'valuation date'.  The RV is set by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) and 
is updated for all businesses every five years. The most recent valuation year was 2017 and the current 
valuation date is 1 April 2015. National multipliers are set by central government each year and are 
adjusted for inflation.

A range of mandatory and discretionary relief schemes are available to qualifying businesses, some of 
which are longer term whilst others are of a temporary nature and intended to lessen the impact of 
significant changes in RV that occur during valuation years.

As at December 2018, the Council is responsible for the billing and collection of NNDR from 3,860 
business premises across the district, with a rateable value of £38.5m.  The Council’s Business Rates 
team are based at Riverbank House and are responsible for maintaining an accurate and reliable 
database of non-domestic properties and for the timely and accurate billing and recovery of business 
rates.  The software application used by revenues teams, including NNDR, is Capita’s Advantage 
(formerly Academy). Advantage is a recognized and established solution that is widely used by local 
authorities. A team of System Administrators provide day to day system support for the revenues 
service.

The previous audit of business rates was conducted in December 2017. The audit opinion at that time 
was ‘good’ with no high priority issues identified.

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks

Level of Assurance

1. Failure to identify all business properties resulting in financial loss. High Standard

2. Standing data is not accurately updated, leading to incorrect billing. High Standard

3. Loss of income arising from late or inaccurate billing or poor debtor 
management.

Good Standard

4. Loss of revenue due to fraud. Good Standard

5. Accounting errors leading to a material misstatement in the published 
accounts.

Good Standard

Page 64



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

13

Executive Summary 

Identification of New Properties
Visiting Officers work closely with the NNDR team and have a good local knowledge. They employ 
several measures including visual observation whilst in the community and monitoring of Building 
Control commencement and completion notices to ensure that they promptly identify and inspect new or 
converted properties and report back to either the NNDR or Council Tax team as appropriate. The VOA 
are then notified to ensure that an appropriate banding (for Council Tax) or RV (for Non-Domestic use) 
are applied. Once the Authority is notified of the appropriate RV bills can be issued and income 
collected.

Valuation Office Agency (VOA) Notifications
The NNDR team obtain a weekly, consecutively numbered schedule from the VOA. This contains details 
of additions, deletions or amendments to the rating list. The changes notified on these schedules had 
been promptly updated on the Academy system throughout the year and signed off. 

The Schedules also provide the NNDR team with the total number and RV of properties within the rating 
list. This information allows the NNDR team to reconcile the VOA rating list totals to those within the 
Authority’s NNDR database. Our testing confirmed this reconciliation had been completed on a weekly 
basis and signed by the responsible officer, with no variances ongoing. As at the date of the latest VOA 
schedule, there were a total of 3,860 separate hereditaments with a total rateable value of £38,526,487.

System Parameters 
Prior to annual billing each year the system parameters need updating to ensure that the bills are 
calculated correctly. System parameters include national multipliers as notified by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government and figures necessary for the calculation of transitional 
relief, mandatory and discretionary discounts. For our sample we confirmed that system parameters 
were updated by the NNDR & Income team Leader on 2 March 2018 and matched those shown in 
communications from central government or figures shown in the end of year guide provided by Capita. 

The NNDR database retains an audit trail of changes to system parameters, which includes a timestamp 
and user id. This helps ensure accountability and provides assurance that changes have been made by 
an appropriately senior and experienced officer. The ability to amend system parameters is restricted to 
a relatively small number of officers such as system administrators. As at the time of testing there were 
a total of six users within the Administrator group.

Statutory Returns
The NNDR3 outturn report in respect of 2017/18 and the NNDR1 estimate in respect of 2018/19 were 
both found to have been finalised and signed off by the S151 officer by the statutory deadline prior to 
their submission to the Department for Communities and Local Government. 

We met with the relevant Accountancy Team member and discussed the in-year monitoring 
arrangements for the figures used within the NNDR1 estimate and confirmed that ongoing records of 
this monitoring were retained. Selected figures from the monitoring records were checked back to 
system reports to verify their accuracy.

Annual Bills
A posting docket dated 09/03/18 confirmed that 3,410 bills were issued by post as part of the annual 
billing process. Remaining bills were issued by email. The total number of bills issued via these methods 
matched closely with the total number of bills generated as shown on the NNDR system reports, with a 
small variance of 4. This was explained by the NNDR Team Leader as being due to the consolidation of 
bills wherever possible to avoid multiple letters being sent to the same individual. 

Page 65



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

14

Reliefs
We looked at a sample of accounts where reliefs had been applied. This included long standing 
mandatory reliefs such as Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR) and Charitable Relief, as well as 
discretionary or time limited reliefs such as Public House Relief and Discretionary Local Rate Relief. 
Account details and supporting evidence was reviewed to confirm eligibility and bill calculations were 
checked for reasonableness and discussed with the NNDR Team Leader. Where discretionary reliefs 
had been awarded, we also confirmed that the appropriate application form had been received and, 
where applicable, a scoring matrix completed to determine the level of relief. A Discretionary Rate Relief 
Policy was found to be in place. Further improvement to this area can be made by ensuring that 
procedures for the assessment of discretionary reliefs are aligned with actual practice.

Following a recommendation last year, a refresh has been undertaken of the declarations submitted by 
businesses in relation to SBRR. We saw evidence of updated declaration having been received 
although it was indicated by the NNDR Team Leader that work remains ongoing in this area.

Overpayments and Refunds
A report is run weekly showing credit balances on accounts. These can arise following successful 
appeals, changes in ownership/occupation or the retrospective application of discounts. For those 
instances tested, we verified that the accounts showed a credit balance prior to refund and that a 
separation of duties had been applied between the requesting and authorising of the refund. Legislation 
allows for interest to be paid to the customer on credit balances; however, the rate of interest has been 
set at 0% since 2013 due to the low bank base rate. 

Arrears
Recovery processes were found to be in place and well established and includes a joint Council 
Tax/NNDR recovery timetable. The timetable includes pre-set dates for the generation of reminders, 
summonses, court and committal hearing dates. We verified that the timetable had been followed for a 
sample of events, with the only notable delay occurring during November, which was explained as being 
due to the relocation of the team to Riverbank House. We further tested a sample of individual arrears 
cases and found that suitable actions including escalation had occurred to recover monies owed. 

Collection rates for NNDR are recorded in the SPAR.net system and are reported to management within 
the Quarterly Business Report. The annual target for collection has been set at 98.5% for several years 
and the team have consistently achieved a collection rate very close to this target (shown below).We 
note that for the current year the % collected as at the end of October was 57.45% against a profiled 
target of 67.74%. This was discussed with the team leader who explained that the apparent drop was 
due to taxpayers not returning their updated declaration forms and having their reliefs suspended. This 
is expected to resolve itself as the year progresses and more taxpayers send in their returns and their 
reliefs are re-instated.

Page 66



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

15

Write Offs
Processes are in place to identify and write off debts that are considered uncollectable. We reviewed a 
selection of these to ensure that valid reasons had been given and that authorisation had occurred in 
accordance with the relevant scheme of delegation. Common reasons for write offs include bankruptcy, 
dissolution of the company or organisation, or inability to locate the debtor. Debt can also be written 
back at a later date if a new recovery option becomes available. Some improvements to the process 
could be made; for instance by updating and clarifying procedures and ensuring the NDR team use a 
consistent method of inputting write offs to the database.

System Reconciliation
NNDR transactions are recorded within several systems, including the NNDR database, cash receipting 
system and general ledger. The Systems Administration team have a well-established process for 
reconciling these systems to identify potential issues. The reconciliations were found to be carried out 
regularly and promptly, were up to date and had no ongoing unresolved variances. Independent checks 
on the reconciliation have historically been carried out by the Accountancy team however improvements 
are possible to ensure these independent checks are better evidenced.

The detailed findings and recommendations regarding these issues and less important matters are 
described in Appendix A. Recommendations have been categorised to aid prioritisation. Definitions of 
the priority categories and the assurance opinion ratings are also given in the Appendices to this report. 
Management are required to agree an action plan, ideally within three weeks of receiving the draft 
internal audit report. 

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues have been identified during this audit that require disclosure in the Annual Governance 
Statement.

Page 67



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

16

Main Accounting – High Standard Opinion (high standard rating on 8/8 risk areas)

Introduction 
The Main Accounting System provides the backbone of the Council’s accounting processes. It 
comprises a series of accounting codes organised into a structure that enables the Authorities budget 
and relevant transactional information from the feeder systems to be recorded. The feeder systems 
include Accounts Payable (creditors), Accounts Receivable (debtors), Payroll and Cash Receipting.

The main aims and objectives of the Accountancy Team are to manage the Authority’s central 
accounting records; ensure sound budget setting; monitor income and expenditure, and produce the 
year end accounts, ensuring the accuracy and completeness of records that reflect the true and fair 
representation of the Authority’s transactions.

The previous audit of the Main Accounting system was concluded in December 2017 and covered the 
2017/2018 financial year. The audit opinion from this audit was ‘High’. 

This audit derives from the annual audit plan of the Internal Audit Section and a requirement to audit 
essential systems on an annual basis.

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered
   -   key concerns or unmitigated risks

Level of Assurance Direction 
of travel

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (FIS) High Standard

 
BUDGETARY CONTROL High Standard

 
FEEDER SYSTEMS High Standard

 
JOURNALS AND INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS High Standard

 
SUSPENSE ACCOUNTS (in main accounting system) High Standard

 
BANK RECONCILIATIONS High Standard

CAPITAL ACCOUNTING Not Assessed N/A 

FINAL ACCOUNTS Not Assessed N/A 

IT SYSTEMS High Standard

 
POLICIES High Standard

 

Executive Summary 

Our review of the main accounting system was completed in December 2018.  The work has included 
reconciliation of the interfaces with the feeder systems, review of opening and closing balances, trial 
balance reconciliations, budget setting, approval, monitoring and changes, review and reconciliation of 
control accounts, authorisation of journal transfers, bank reconciliation, review and clearing of suspense 

Page 68



Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date

17

accounts, policy, and access rights, ensuring that access to Cedar is appropriate.  Whilst closedown, 
and final accounts have previously been included in the audit programme, these areas have not been 
reviewed at this audit, due to them being covered extensively by External Audit, and therefore internal 
audit review was deemed not to add value in these aspects.  

There have been no major changes to the main accounting systems and processes at the time of writing 
and we found all risks were well managed with effective controls in place and were being operated 
effectively to mitigate the following risks:

R1 Transaction or event has not occurred or does not relate to audited body
R2 Amounts relating to the transactions have not been recorded
R3 Amounts relating to the transactions have not been recorded accurately
R4 Transactions have not been recorded in the correct accounting period
R5 Transactions have not been recorded in the correct codes / headings

The assurances provided in this review have been reported based on areas covered, and not on the 
risks themselves.  However, with the high level of assurance provided overall, high level of assurance 
can also be applied to each of the risks identified.

We undertook a follow of previously agreed recommendations and verified that all previous 
recommendations had been implemented.

The detailed findings and recommendations regarding these issues and less important matters are 
described in Appendix A. Recommendations have been categorised to aid prioritisation. Definitions of 
the priority categories and the assurance opinion ratings are also given in the Appendices to this report. 
Management are required to agree an action plan, ideally within three weeks of receiving the draft 
internal audit report. 

Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 

The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, 
systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual Governance Statement. 

No issues were identified that require disclosure within the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 69



Agenda Item
REPORT OF Service Improvement Officer
To: Audit & Governance Committee
Subject: Progress with Agreed Actions
Date: 19th February 2019 Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide an update on progress with implementing agreed actions.
 

1. INTRODUCTION
The Audit & Governance Committee requested a regular report on progress with agreed 
actions. This report is set out at appendix A. 

2. REPORT
A summary of the position as at the 19th February is shown at Appendix A. 

Since the Audit & Governance Committee in November 2018 there has been 6 internal 
audit reports issued containing 22 agreed new audit actions. In the same period there 
have been 18 actions completed by management. 

There were 7 internal audit actions due for completion by the 19 February 2019 which 
were not completed on time. The responsible officers have been contacted and as a 
result:
- An extension has been agreed for 3 audit actions;
- A second extension has been proposed for 3 audit actions;
- One audit action remains outstanding.

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None

Financial Implications
None

Human Resources Implications
None

Sustainability Implications
None

Equality/Diversity
None

Risk Management
The two key outcomes from an audit are the opinion on the audit subject, which indicates the 
level of assurance that members can take, and the agreed actions to strengthen the control 
framework where testing has shown risks are not being adequately managed. The agreed 
actions are evaluated using the corporate risk matrix and the audit reports include those 
risks that are medium or high. Low risk or housekeeping matters are reported separately and 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11



directly to management for them to manage. The Internal Audit team report on progress in 
implementing the actions agreed with management to better control high and medium risks. 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
This report complies with the Audit & Governance Committee terms of reference and the 
Audit Procedures Manual. 

Ward Member and Leader Member Views
Consultations date - Councillor Philip Hackett – January 2019.

4. CONCLUSIONS
Since the A&G meeting in November 2018, 22 new actions have been identified in internal 
audit reports and 18 actions have been completed by management.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

Committee are asked to:

 Agree the second extension requests
 Note the progress with actions in this Quarter

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Consultations: Jenny Wallace
Steve Hearse
Staci Dorey
Councillor Philip Hackett
Other officers as required

Contact Officer: Chris Dobbs

Background Papers: Audit files

Page 71



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 19th February 2019

Description Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total

Number of scheduled actions on last report (9/11/2018) 27  27
Number of new agreed actions this period 21 1 22

Total agreed actions 49
Actions completed this period 17 1 18
    
Balance of scheduled actions (19/2/2019)   31
    
Number of actions where target date has not been achieved   7
    

Number of Scheduled Actions by Service  

Service Area Medium 
Risk

High                 
Risk Total  Due by 

19/02/19
Due by 

31/05/19
Due 
After 

31/05/19
Accountancy Services 2  2   1 1
Car Parks 1  1   1  
Governance   0     
Housing Options   0     
Human Resources   0     
ICT 8  8   8  
Legal Services   0     
Planning   0     
Property 5  5  2 1 2
Regulatory 3  3   3  
Revenues & Benefits 5  5   5  
Safeguarding 1  1  1   
Waste & Recycling & Community Safety 1  1  1   
Strategic Manager (Services) 5  5   5  

Total o/s actions 31 0 31  4 24 3

First Extension                 3

Second Extension            3 
                      

Missed Deadlines             1                   
          

P
age 72



Appendix A - Progress with Agreed Actions - as at 19th February 2019

First Extension Agreed

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Risk 
Management Steve Hearse Extension 

Agreed

Risk 
Management 
Audit 
2017/18

Service Risk 
Register

Was 
31/12/2018 

Now 
28/2/2018

The Corporate Risk Management Group will review the individual service risk registers over the 
next meetings and one of the group will be tasked with discussing the individual risk register with 
the Operational manager to improve and develop.  The training planned will also be targeted to 
improve this and the CRMG also intend to review the documenting processes for capturing and 
recording lower level risks as the current documentation is considered as far to onerous for this 
level. Service Registers are currently being updated as part of the annual business planning 
process.

Council Tax Simon Toon Extension 
Agreed

Council Tax 
Audit 
2018/19

SPD 
Reviews

Was 
30/11/2018 

Now 
31/3/2019

The proposed work to review SPD’s should proceed as soon as possible.
If the review does not occur in 2018/19 then plans should be put in place to ensure a review is 
undertaken in 2019/20.
Negotiating a joint project with South Hams and West Devon for SPD reviews using 
sophisticated data matching (provided by an outside agency). Business Case to DCC to 
fund project (SM)

Cemeteries Andrew Waite Extension 
Agreed

Cemeteries 
Audit 
2017/18

Statutory 
Records

Was 
31/12/2018 

Now 
31/3/2019

We note that there is a significant degree of duplication with regard to burial records. As well as 
making entries into the manual ledgers that have been used for decades, the same information is 
also recorded using Cemetery Pro software and on an index card system.

Section 11 of the Local Authority Cemeteries Order 1977 states that the record should be in a book 
or a computer. Duplication of work is inefficient which in turn puts a greater strain on the services 
resources. The service should consider improving efficiency by ensuring they have a robust 
computerised solution in place and phasing out the use of the manual registers and index card 
system for new burials. 
Has been reviewed and considered and a meeting arranged to discuss options.

Second Extension Requested

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Safeguarding Simon Toon Extension 
Requested

Safeguarding 
Audit 2016/17

Information 
Sharing

Was 
31/12/2018 

Now 
30/9/2019

A protocol should be developed so that all agencies have a clear understanding of information 
sharing requirements. This is being led by the DSCB (Devon Children’s Safeguarding Board). 
Liaison with other parties is ongoing.

Asset Andrew Extension Asset Mgt Audit Asset Was The Asset Management Plan 2013-17 published on the website states it is closely aligned with the 

P
age 73

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1146
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1146
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1162
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1162
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1142
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1142
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1031
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1031
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1081


Management Waite Agreed 2017/18 Management 
Plan

30/09/2018
Now

31/3/2019

Capital Programme covering the same period. Page 22 sets out the Capital Programme budges 
from April 2013 to March 2017. As such the Asset Management Plan is now deemed to be out of 
date.
A new Asset Management Plan with priorities that support the Authority’s Strategic Plan, should be 
developed, approved and published.
Draft has been produced for reporting to the Asset & Capital Monitoring Group. 

Property Andrew 
Waite

Extension 
Agreed

Cemeteries Audit 
2017/18

Cemetery 
Pro Security

Was 
31/12/2018

Now
31/3/2019

We found the Cemetery Pro software to be fairly weak in terms of security. It was noted:
•There are no user profiles to restrict access for instance to ‘read only’;
•Users are unable to change passwords;
•The administrator (override) password is weak;
•There is no obvious ability for a local administrator to suspend or revoke user access;
•One current user no longer works in the Cemeteries service.
These matters should be communicated back to the software supplier and resolutions sought.
Software provider has been contacted. We have made some improvements but need to 
update some further information with an upgrade on our system which is to be done shortly. 
Team at Caddsdown are working MTith software firm on this issue

Outstanding Issues

Service
Responsible 

Officer Status Audit
Action 

Summary
Complete 

By Comment

Waste Richard 
Haste

Milestone 
Missed

Procurement 
Audit 2016/17

Formal 
Contracts

Was 
30/09/2016 

Now 
30/09/2017

We acknowledge that there is no formal agreement in place, Peake GB are a specialist provider 
who we have used for many years, and we hold risk assessments to ensure that both parties are 
aware of and can manage risk associated with the service.

We have recently reviewed clinical waste collections which should result in a significant reduction in 
the costs payable to the contractor. If the ongoing costs associated with the service warrant it (are 
expected to be over £30k per year), we will carry out a formal tendering exercise and draw up a 
formal agreement between the partner Authorities and the contractor. This was to have been a 
joint procurement exercise by Torridge, North Devon and Mid Devon but North Devon and 
Mid Devon have shelved this. The current arrangement with Peake (although without a 
contract) allows for the subsidy of their disposal charge by the collection costs - if we go to 
the market then in any new arrangement will cost more for Torridge as the disposal element 
will have to be put into the existing county contract which is considerably lower. Other 
Councils do not want to change existing arrangements and incur more costs

SMT have made a decision regarding this risk and Richard Haste has been asked to carry 
out a procurement exercise. 

P
age 74

http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1081
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1081
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1138
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=1138
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992
http://vm-spar-live/sparnet/default.aspx?Type=3&ID=992


Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Torridge District Council

Year ending 31 March 2019

19 February 2019

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 12



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 8 February 2019 4

Audit Deliverables 6

Grant Thornton’s External Audit Commitment 5

Sector Update 9

Links 15

2

P
age 76



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

This paper provides the Audit and Governance Committee with a report on 

progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 

local authority.

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the 

Grant Thornton logo to be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

/

Introduction

3

Alex Walling

Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 4804

M 07880 456 142

E alex.j.walling@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7896

M 07880 456 123

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

P
age 77

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued by 

the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors to 

satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and 

sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our 

approach are included in our Audit Plan. This is included 

as a separate agenda item.

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2019.

Progress at 8 February 2019

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual 

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 

procedures agreed with the Department for Work 

and Pensions. This certification work for the 2017/18 

claim was concluded in November 2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to 

you in our certification letter, which is included on 

the agenda.

Meetings

We meet with the Head of Paid Services and the 

Strategic Manager (Resources) as part of our 

regular liaison meetings, with our most recent 

meeting being in January 2019, and continue to be 

in discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process is 

smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with 

network events for members and publications to 

support the Council. Our Financial Reporting 

Workshop which helps to ensure that members of 

your Finance Team are up to date with the latest 

financial reporting requirements for local authority 

accounts.  Our Bristol and Plymouth workshops are 

on 7 February and 12 February respectively.

Further details of the publications that may be of 

interest to the Council are set out in our Sector 

Update section of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We have started planning for the 2018/19 financial 

statements audit and have issued a detailed audit 

plan, setting out our proposed approach to the audit 

of the Council's 2018/19 financial statements.

We are due to commence our interim audit in March 

2019. Our interim fieldwork visit will include:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2018/19 

opinion is 31 July 2018. We will discuss our plan and 

timetable with officers.

The final accounts audit will take place in July with 

findings reported to you in the Audit Findings Report 

by the deadline of July 2019.

P
age 78



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Progress at 8 February 2019 (continued)

5

PSAA Contract Monitoring

Torridge District Council opted into the Public Sector 

Audit Appointments (PSAA) Appointing Person 

scheme which starts in 2018/19. PSAA appointed 

Grant Thornton as auditors. PSAA is responsible 

under the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015 for monitoring compliance with the 

contract and is committed to ensuring good quality 

audit services are provided by its suppliers. Details of 

PSAA’s audit quality monitoring arrangements are 

available from its website, www.psaa.co.uk.

Our contract with PSAA contains a method statement 

which sets out the firm’s commitment to deliver 

quality audit services, our audit approach and what 

clients can expect from us. We have set out 

commitment to deliver a high quality audit service in 

the attached presentation. We hope this is helpful. It 

will also be a benchmark for you to provide feedback 

on our performance to PSAA via its survey in Autumn 

2019.

P
age 79



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Audit Deliverables

6

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

January 2019 Complete

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2018 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit and Governance Committee setting out our 

proposed approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2018-19 financial statements.

February 2019 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 

our Progress Report.

April 2019 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit and Governance Committee.

July 2019 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our housing benefits certification work.

December 2019 Not yet due

P
age 80



Local Government 
audits 2018/19 and 
beyond

Grant Thornton's 
External 
Audit commitment
Audit 2018/19 

GRT103867

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context 

requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal 

entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one 

another’s acts or omissions. 

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining fromacting as a result of any material in this publication. 

grantthornton.co.uk

Our team

Mark Bartlett
Manager

T 0117 305 7896

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

Peter Brereton
Audit Incharge

T 0117 305 7888

E peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com

Alex Walling
Engagement Lead

T 0117 305 7804

E alex.j.walling@uk.gt.com

“I have always been extremely pleased with the work done by colleagues from Grant Thornton, there is continuity of staff delivering the team who presented the 

bid. This continuity remains through the cycle of work that takes place during the year; allowing the team to continue to understand the corporate objectives 

whilst allowing us to ensure we comply with the required standards. The team are very friendly and approachable with an accommodating style”.

Director of Finance, local audited body

7

P
age 81



Our connections
 We are well connected to MHCLG, the 

NAO and key local government networks

 We work with CIPFA, Think Tanks and 
legal firms to develop workshops and good 
practice

 We have a strong presence across all parts 
of local government including blue light 
services

 We provide thought leadership, seminars 
and training to support our clients and to 
provide solutions

Our people
 We have over 25 engagement leads 

accredited by ICAEW, and over 
250 public sector specialists

 We provide technical and personal 
development training

 We employ over 80 Public Sector trainee 
accountants

The Local Government economy 

Local authorities face unprecedented challenges including:

- Financial Sustainability – addressing funding gaps and balancing needs against resources

- Service Sustainability – Adult Social Care funding gaps and pressure on Education, Housing, 

Transport

- Transformation – new models of delivery, greater emphasis on partnerships, more focus on 

economic development

- Technology – cyber security and risk management

At a wider level, the political environment remains complex:

- The government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements 

remain uncertain.

- We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part of 

our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

- We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2018/19 through 

on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

New 
opportunities 
and challenges 
for your 
community

Our quality
 Our audit approach complies with the 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice, and 
International Standards on Auditing

 We are fully compliant with ethical 
standards

 Your audit team has passed all quality 
inspections including QAD and AQRT

Grant Thornton in Local 
Government

 We work closely with our clients to ensure that we understand their financial challenges, 

performance and future strategy.

 We deliver robust, pragmatic and timely financial statements and Value for Money audits

 We have an open, two way dialogue with clients that support improvements in arrangements 

and the audit process

 Feedback meetings tell us that our clients are pleased with the service we deliver. We are not 

complacent and will continue to improve further

 Our locally based, experienced teams have a commitment to both our clients and the wider 

public sector

 We are a Firm that specialises in Local Government, Health and Social Care, and Cross Sector 

working, with over 25 Key Audit Partners, the most public sector specialist Engagement Leads 

of any firm

 We have strong relationships with CIPFA, SOLACE, the Society of Treasurers, the Association 

of Directors of Adult Social Care and others. 

 We propose a realistic fee, based on known local circumstances and requirements.

Our 
relationship 
with our 
clients– why are 
we best placed?

 Early advice on technical accounting  issues, providing certainty of accounting treatments, future 

financial planning implications and resulting in draft statements that are 'right first time’

 Knowledge and expertise in all matters local government, including local objections and challenge, 

where we have an unrivalled depth of expertise. 

 Early engagement on issues, especially on ADMs, housing delivery changes, Children services 

and Adult Social Care restructuring, partnership working with the NHS, inter authority agreements, 

governance and financial reporting

 Implementation of our recommendations have resulted in demonstrable improvements in your 

underlying arrangements, for example accounting for unique assets, financial management, 

reporting and governance, and tax implications for the Cornwall Council companies 

 Robust but pragmatic challenge – seeking early liaison on issues, and having the difficult 

conversations early to ensure a 'no surprises' approach – always doing the right thing

 Providing regional training and networking opportunities for your teams on technical accounting 

issues and developments and changes to Annual Reporting requirements

 An efficient audit approach, providing  tangible benefits, such as releasing finance staff earlier and 

prompt resolution of issues.

Delivering real 
value through:

Our client base 
and delivery
 We are the largest supplier of external audit 

services to local government

 We audit over 150 local government clients

 We signed 95% of  our local government 
opinions in 2017/18 by 31 July

 In our latest independent client service 
review, we consistently score 9/10 or 
above. Clients value our strong interaction, 
our local knowledge and wealth of 
expertise.

Our technical 
support
 We have specialist leads for Public Sector 

Audit quality and technical

 We provide national technical guidance on 
emerging auditing, financial reporting and 
ethical areas

 Specialist audit software is used to deliver 
maximum efficiencies

“I have found Grant Thornton to be very 

impressive…..they  bring a real understanding of the 

area. Their insights and support are excellent. They 

are responsive, pragmatic and, through their 

relationship and the quality of their work, support us 

in moving forward through increasingly challenging 

times. I wouldn't hesitate to work with them."

Director of Finance, County Council 

Our commitment to our local government 

clients

• Senior level investment

• Local presence enhancing our 

responsiveness, agility and flexibility.

• High quality audit delivery

• Collaborative working across the public 

sector

• Wider connections across the public sector 

economy, including with health and other 

local government bodies

• Investment in Health and Wellbeing, Social 

Value and the Vibrant Economy 

• Sharing of best practice and our thought 

leadership.

• Invitations to training events locally and 

regionally – bespoke training for emerging 

issues

• Further investment in data analytics and 

informatics to keep our knowledge of the 

areas up to date and to assist in designing a 

fully tailored audit approach

8

P
age 82



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

9

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

P
age 83



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Public Sector Audit Appointments – Report on the 
results of auditors’ work 2017/18

This is the fourth report published by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA) and summarises the results of auditors’ 

work at 495 principal local government and police bodies for 

2017/18. This will be the final report under the statutory 

functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 that were 

delegated to PSAA on a transitional basis.

The report covers the timeliness and quality of financial 

reporting, auditors’ local value for money work, and the extent 

to which auditors used their statutory reporting powers.

For 2017/18, the statutory accounts publication deadline came forward by two months to 31 

July 2018. This was challenging for bodies and auditors and it is encouraging that 431 (87 

per cent) audited bodies received an audit opinion by the new deadline.

The most common reasons for delays in issuing the opinion on the 2017/18 accounts were:

• technical accounting/audit issues;

• various errors identified during the audit;

• insufficient availability of staff at the audited body to support the audit;

• problems with the quality of supporting working papers; and

• draft accounts submitted late for audit.

All the opinions issued to date in relation to bodies’ financial statements are unqualified, as 

was the case for the 2016/17 accounts. Auditors have made statutory recommendations to 

three bodies, compared to two such cases in respect of  2016/17, and issued an advisory 

notice to one body. 

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements looks set to remain 

relatively constant. It currently stands at 7 per cent (32 councils, 1 fire and rescue authority, 

1 police body and 2 other local government bodies) compared to 8 per cent for 2016/17, with 

a further 30 conclusions for 2017/18 still to be issued.

The most common reasons for auditors issuing qualified VFM conclusions for 2017/18 were: 

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates, for example 

Ofsted; 

• corporate governance issues; 

• financial sustainability concerns; and 

• procurement/contract management issues. 

All the opinions issued to date in relation to bodies' financial statements are unqualified, as 

was the case for the 2016/17 accounts. 

The report is available on the PSAA website:  

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

10

P
age 84

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

CIPFA – Financial Resilience Index plans revised

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) has refined its plans for a financial resilience index 

for councils and is poised to rate bodies on a “suite of 

indicators” following a consultation with the sector. 

CIPFA has designed the index to provide reassurance to councils who are financially stable 

and prompt challenge where it may be needed. To understand the sector’s views, CIPFA 

invited all interested parties to respond to questions it put forward in the consultation by the 

24 August.

CIPFA has also responded to concerns about the initial choice of indicators, updating the 

selection and will offer authorities an advanced viewing of results.

Plans for a financial resilience index were put forward by CIPFA in the summer. It is being 

designed to offer the sector some external guidance on their financial position.

CIPFA hailed the “unprecedented level of interest” in the consultation.

Responses were received from 189 parties, including individual local authorities, umbrella 

groups and auditors. Some respondents called for a more “forward-looking” assessment and 

raised fears over the possibility of “naming and shaming” councils.

CIPFA chief executive Rob Whiteman said with local government facing “unprecedented 

financial challenges” and weaknesses in public audit systems, the institute was stepping in to 

provide a leadership role in the public interest.

“Following the feedback we have received, we have modified and strengthened the tool so it 

will be even more helpful for local authorities with deteriorating financial positions,” he said.

“The tool will sit alongside CIPFA’s planned Financial Management Code, which aims to 

support good practice in the planning and execution of sustainable finances.”

CIPFA is now planning to introduce a “reserves depletion time” category as one of the 

indicators. This shows the length of time a council’s reserves will last if they deplete their 

reserves at the same rate as over the past three years.

The consultation response document said this new category showed that “generally most 

councils have either not depleted their reserves or their depletion has been low”.

“The tool will not now provide, as originally envisaged, a composite weighted index but within 

the suite of indicators it will include a red, amber, green (RAG) alert of specific proximity to 

insufficient reserve given recent trajectories,” it said.

It also highlighted the broad support from the sector for the creation of the index. “There was 

little dissent over the fact that CIPFA is doing the right thing in drawing attention to a matter 

of high national concern,” it said.

“Most respondents agreed to the need for transparency – but a sizable number had 

concerns over the possibly negative impacts of adverse indicators and many councils 

wanted to see their results prior to publication.”

As such, CIPFA plans to provide resilience measurements first to the local authorities and 

their auditors via the section 151 officer rather than publishing openly.

11

P
age 85



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

ICEAW Report: expectations gap

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 

(ICEAW) has published a paper on the ‘expectation gap’ in the 

external audit of public bodies.

Context:

The expectation gap is the difference between what an auditor actually does, and what stakeholders 

and commentators think the auditors obligations might be and what they might do. Greater debate 

being whether greater education and communication between auditors and stakeholders should 

occur rather than substantial changes in role and remit of audit.

What’s the problem?

• Short-term solvency vs. Longer-term value:

• LG & NHS: Facing financial pressures, oversight & governance pressures 

• Limited usefulness of auditors reports: ‘The VFM conclusion is helpful, but it is more about 

the system/arrangements in place rather than the actual effectiveness of value for money’ 

• Other powers and duties: implementing public interest reports in addition to VFM

• Restricted role of questions and objections: Misunderstanding over any objections/and or 

question should be resolved by the local public auditor. Lack of understanding that auditors have 

discretion in the use of their powers.

• Audit qualification not always acted on by those charged with governance: ‘if independent 

public audit is to have the impact that it needs, it has to be taken seriously by those charged with 

governance’

• Audit committees not consistently effective: Local government struggles to recruit external 

members for their audit committees, they do not always have the required competencies and 

independence.

• Decreased audit fees: firms choose not to participate because considered that the margins 

were too tight to enable them to carry out a sufficient amount of work within the fee scales.

• Impact of audit independence rules: new independence rules don’t allow for external auditors 

to take on additional work that could compromise their external audit role

• Other stakeholders expectations not aligned with audit standards

• Increased auditor liability: an auditor considering reporting outside of the main audit 

engagement would need to bill their client separately and expect the client to pay.

Future financial viability of local public bodies 

Local public bodies are being asked to deliver more with less and be more innovative and 

commercial. CFOs are, of course, nervous at taking risks in the current environment and therefore 

would like more involvement by their auditors. They want auditors to challenge their forward-

looking plans and assumptions and comment on the financial resilience of the organisation..

12

Solution a) If CFO’s want additional advisory work, rather than just the audit, they can 

separately hire consultants (either accountancy firms not providing the statutory audit or 

other business advisory organisations with the required competencies) to work alongside 

them in their financial resilience work and challenging budget assumptions.

Solution b) Wider profession (IFAC,IAASB, accountancy bodies) should consider whether 

audit, in its current form, is sustainable and fit for purpose. Stakeholders want greater 

assurance, through greater depth of testing, analysis and more detailed reporting of 

financial matters. It is perhaps, time to look at the wider scope of audit. For example, 

could there be more value in auditors providing assurance reports on key risk indicators 

which have a greater future-looking focus, albeit focused on historic data?

The ICAEW puts forward two solutions:

More information can be found in the link below 

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-

public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

P
age 86

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Financial Foresight: Our sustainable solution for 
cash-strapped councils

Grant Thornton’s new Financial Foresight platform helps 

provide local councils with financial sustainability.

Launched in early January, Financial Foresight is a 

unique platform that can help us provide financial 

sustainability to under-pressure local councils, using a 

combination of data, statistics and our expertise.

In December 2018, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) estimated that 15% of councils are showing signs of financial distress. If the 

rate at which these councils are dipping into their financial reserves continues, the 

National Audit Office estimates that 10% of councils will have depleted their reserves 

by 2021. The latest figures from our Insights and Analytics team 

suggest this could be closer to 20%.

Alarm bells started to chime at Somerset, Surrey, Lancashire and Birmingham 

councils last year. Yet it was the catastrophic near-collapse of Northamptonshire 

County Council - after it chose for five years not to raise council tax to cover its 

spiralling costs - that shone the spotlight on this widespread problem. 

Unless local councils can get to grips with the situation, we’ll all feel the effects of 

deeper cutbacks in public spending.

What’s causing the problem?

After eight years of government austerity which followed the financial crash of 2008, 

many councils are now digging deep into their financial reserves in order to provide 

public services to their communities – from social care to fixing potholes in the road. 

Pressure on funding is further impacted by rapidly rising costs – especially for 

demand-led services as populations grow and age. Within just a few years, many 

councils will not have any reserves left to fall back on, and some have already said 

they will be unable to provide any non-statutory services at this time. Overlay Brexit 

onto this situation, along with the anticipated financial pressures this will bring, and 

the outlook for local authorities is extremely challenging.

13

How can we help?

The investments we have made in analytics coupled with the commercial success of our 

CFO Insights tool has enabled us to develop credible financial forecasts for every local 

authority in the country. From this platform we developed Financial Foresight; a unique, 

forward-looking financial analytics and forecasting platform designed to support financial 

sustainability in local government. 

Financial Foresight takes account of factors such as population growth, development 

forecasts and demand drivers to project local authority spend, income and operating 

costs. It provides a baseline view on the financial sustainability of every local authority in 

England and allows leaders in each authority to benchmark their own outlook against 

others. This will help councils move on from resilience – or just getting by – to financial 

sustainability.

Head of Local Government Paul Dossett said: “Through Financial Foresight and our 

associated strategy workshops, we can support local authorities to test and appraise a 

range of financial strategies and levers to develop a plan for a sustainable future. The 

critical importance of authorities understanding their financial resilience is only going to 

increase, so we’re proud to be leading the market with this offering.”

For more information, follow the links below:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-

why/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/

P
age 87

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-why/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Brexit Room - Increasing readiness and 
resilience within your locality

Local authorities have always navigated uncertainty and 

faced challenges on behalf of communities and this role 

has never been more important than now. Whilst the 

outcome of Brexit remains uncertain at a national level, it 

is essential for councils to set a path to ensure the 

continued delivery of vital services and the best possible 

outcomes for their local communities and economies. 

Whatever happens over the coming weeks and months, 

it is important that councils identify key Brexit scenarios 

and use these to frame robust local contingency plans. 

From our conversations with the sector we know that local authorities are at different 

stages in their preparation for this big change. 

Here’s a brief summary of the issues that we are seeing: 

Organisations

• Engaging non-EEA nationals within the workforce to ensure they understand their 

residency rights and are not receiving incorrect information from other sources

• Loss of access to key EU databases on policing and trading standards and 

changes to data sharing arrangements

• Uncertainty around continuation of EU funding beyond 2020 and the 

implementation of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.

Services and suppliers

• Engaging with key suppliers to assess their risk profiles and resilience

• Dealing with the immediate strain on key services such as social care and trading 

standards

• Potential disruption to live procurement activities and uncertainty around the 

national procurement rulebook post OJEU.

14

Place

• Considering scenarios for economic shock, the associated social impact in the short, 

medium and long-term and the potential impact on local authority financial resilience

• Potential impacts on major local employers, key infrastructure investment 

programmes and transport improvements

• Civil contingencies and providing reassurance and support to residents and 

businesses.

Our approach

The Brexit Room is a flexible and interactive half-day workshop designed to sharpen 

your thinking on the impact Brexit could have on:

Your organisation – including considerations on workforce, funding, and changes to 

legislation 

Your services and suppliers – ensuring that critical services are protected and 

building resilience within supply chains 

Your place – using our proprietary Place Analytics tools we will help you to understand 

potential impacts on your local communities and economy and develop a place-based 

response, working with partners where appropriate. 

We can work with you to identify key risks and opportunities in each of these areas 

whilst building consensus on the priority actions to be taken forward. You will receive a 

concise and focused write-up of the discussion and action plan to help shape the next 

stages of your work on Brexit. 

For more information, follow the link below:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/

P
age 88

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | February 2019

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-why/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/

Public Sector Audit Appointments

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

ICAEW

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

15

Links

P
age 89

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/councils-are-at-risk-but-do-they-really-know-why/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/from-resilience-to-financial-sustainability/
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/insights/brexit-local-leadership-on-the-front-line/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 90



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2019

Torridge District Council

8 February 2019

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 13



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Key matters impacting our audit                                                                                             4                                                   

3. Significant risks identified      5

4. Other matters 7

5. Materiality 8

6.    Value for Money arrangements                                                                                           9

7.    Audit logistics, team & fees                                                                                           10

8.    Early Close                                                                                                            11

9. Independence & non-audit services 12

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the 

Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. 

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, 

nor intended for, any other purpose. 

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Alex Walling

Associate Director

T: 0117 305 7804

E: alex.j.walling@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Audit Manager

T: 0117 305 7896

E: mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

Peter Brereton

Executive

T: 0117 305 7888

E: peter.d.brereton@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 

is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 92



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory 

audit of Torridge District Council (‘the Authority’) for those charged with governance. 

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit 

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin 

and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities 

are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities 

issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for 

appointing us as auditor of Torridge District Council.  We draw your attention to both 

of these documents on the PSAA website. 

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on 

Auditing (ISAs) (UK).  We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• Authority’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the 

oversight of those charged with governance (the Audit & Governance Committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Authority for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit & Governance 

Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Authority to ensure that proper 

arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is 

safeguarded and properly accounted for.  We have considered how the Authority is fulfilling 

these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Authority's business and is 

risk based. We will be using our new audit methodology and tool, LEAP, for the 2018/19 audit. 

It will enable us to be more responsive to changes that may occur in your organisation.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 

identified as:

• Management over-ride of controls.

• Valuation of land and buildings.

• Valuation of the pension fund net liability.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 

Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £0.739m (PY £0.739m) for the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross 

expenditure for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to 

those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.037m (PY £0.037m). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risks:

• Financial sustainability

• Transforming Torridge

Audit logistics Our interim visit will take place in March and our final visit will take place in July.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our Audit 

Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £31,782 (PY: £41,288) for the Authority, subject to the Authority meeting our requirements set out on page 10.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

P
age 93

https://www.psaa.co.uk/


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 4

Key matters impacting our audit

Factors

Our response

.

Financial pressures and political uncertainty

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with 

increasing cost pressures and demand from residents.

The 2019/20 budget and refreshed Medium Term Financial 

Strategy (MTFS) will be presented to the Council in 

February. This shows that the Council will need to draw on 

its reserves to balance the budget in 2019/20 to 2022/23. It 

also highlights that the Transition in Government Funding 

Reserve will have been exhausted during 2020/21 so other 

remedial actions will be required.

At a national level, the government continues its negotiation 

with the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements remain 

clouded in uncertainty. The Authority will need to ensure that 

it is prepared for all outcomes, including in terms of any 

impact on contracts, on service delivery and on its support 

for local people and businesses. 

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and 

reporting your financial resources as part of our work in 

reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to 

material uncertainty about the going concern of the 

Authority and will review related disclosures in the 

financial statements. 

• We will follow up recommendations included in our 

2017/18 Audit Findings Report. 

Changes to the CIPFA 2018/19 Accounting Code 

The most significant changes relate to the adoption of:

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which impacts on the 

classification and measurement of financial assets 

and introduces a new impairment model. 

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

which introduces a five step approach to revenue 

recognition.

The Council is currently considering the impacts of 

these accounting standards.  IFRS 9 is not expected to 

have significant impacts.  IFRS 15 is being discussed 

with service managers to identify and assess the 

contracts requiring review.

Transforming Torridge

Transforming Torridge is a programme of change 

covering office accommodation, Customer First (the 

Reception Hub), Business innovation, locality 

working and the review of waste and recycling. This 

is a significant transformation project for the Council 

and is key to how it intends to achieve the savings 

and efficiencies required in the medium and long 

term.

Significant progress has been made on the 

Programme, although the projected savings are still 

under review following some delays and changes to 

projects and are not included in the latest Medium 

Term Financial Strategy.

• We will keep you informed of changes to the 

financial  reporting requirements for 2018/19 

through on-going discussions and invitations to our 

technical update workshops.

• As part of our opinion on your financial statements, 

we will consider whether your financial statements 

reflect the financial reporting changes in the 

2018/19 CIPFA Code.

• We will review the progress being made on the 

Transforming Torridge Programme, which is key 

project for the Council. We will also consider the 

savings achieved against those originally 

planned  

P
age 94



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 5

Significant risks identified

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 

the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes 

fraudulent transactions (rebutted)

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be 

misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk of 

material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the 

nature of the revenue streams at the Authority, we have 

determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very 

limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, 

including Torridge District Council, mean that all forms of 

fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for 

Torridge District Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. 

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular journals, 

management estimates and transactions outside the course of business as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of 

material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate the design effectiveness of management 

controls over journals

• analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for 

selecting high risk unusual journals 

• test unusual journals recorded during the year and after 

the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and 

corroboration

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and 

critical  judgements applied made by management and 

consider their reasonableness with regard to 

corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting 

policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

P
age 95



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land 

and buildings

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling 

five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial statements due 

to the size of the numbers involved (over £37 million) 

and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key 

assumptions. Additionally, management will need to 

ensure the carrying value in the Authority’s financial 

statements is not materially different from the current 

value or the fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial 

statements date, where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, 

particularly revaluations and impairments, as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most significant 

assessed risks of material misstatement, and a key audit 

matter.

We will:

• evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate, the 

instructions issued to the valuation expert and the scope of their work

• evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out

• challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess completeness and 

consistency with our understanding

• test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the Authority's 

asset register

• evaluating the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and 

how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current value at 

year end.

Valuation of the 

pension fund 

net liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability, as reflected in 

its balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability,

represents a significant estimate in the financial 

statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant 

estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£44 

million in the Authority’s balance sheet) and the 

sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key 

assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s 

pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which was 

one of the most significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement, and a key audit matter.

We will:

• update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management to ensure that 

the Authority’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of the 

associated controls

• evaluate the instructions issued by management  to their management expert (an actuary) for this 

estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work

• assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Authority’s 

pension fund valuation 

• assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Authority to the actuary 

to estimate the liability

• test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the notes to the core 

financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made by 

reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any additional 

procedures suggested within the report

• obtain assurances from the auditor of Devon Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the 

validity and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary 

by the pension fund and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Significant risks identified

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2019.

P
age 96



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 7

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other 

audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement to check that 

they are consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and 

consistent with our knowledge of the Authority.

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 

Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 

Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under legislation and the Code, as and when required, 

including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2018/19 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 

relation to the 2018/19 financial statements;

• issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 

Authority under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State.

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 

to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act; 

or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material 

misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each 

material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material 

balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will 

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is 

a material uncertainty about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA 

(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption 

and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements. 

P
age 97



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 8

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements 

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to 

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and 

applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if 

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross 

expenditure of the Authority for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same 

benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £0.739m (PY £0.739m) for 

the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year. We 

design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision 

which we have determined to be £5k for senior officer remuneration. 

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we 

become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a 

different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 

our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit 

Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are 

identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged 

with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements 

other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 

(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken 

individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative 

criteria.  In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could 

normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £37k (PY £37k). 

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of 

the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the 

Audit & Governance Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£36.967m Authority

(PY: £36.967m)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£0.739m

Authority financial 

statements materiality

(PY: £0.739m)

£37k

Misstatements reported 

to the Audit  & 

Governance Committee

(PY: £37k)

P
age 98



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 9

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The

guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a

conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure value for

money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 

proper arrangements are not in place at the Authority to deliver value for money.

Financial sustainability

The Council has recently refreshed its Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS).  This shows that the Council will need to draw on its reserves to 

balance the budget in 2019/20 to 2022/23. It also highlights that the Transition 

in Government Funding Reserve will have been exhausted during 2020/21 so 

other remedial actions are required.

We will review the Council’s latest MTFS and budget, including the 

assumptions and the savings plans reflected within them. We will also review 

the 2018/19 savings achieved against those planned.

Transforming Torridge

The Transforming Torridge Program is a significant project for the Council and 

is critical to the way it will deliver its services in the medium term.

We will review the progress being made on this key project for the Council, 

which cuts across the VFM sub-criteria. We will also consider the savings 

achieved against those originally planned.

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria

P
age 99



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 10

Audit logistics, team & fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are £31,792 (PY: £41,288) for the financial statements audit 

completed under the Code, which are inline with the scale fee published by PSAA. 

£15,301 of fees are planned for the housing benefits reporting accountant’s work, which 

constitutes non Code work by PSAA.  

In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Authority and its 

activities, do not significantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have detailed 

our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. If the 

requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit visit 

and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

Alex Walling, Engagement Lead

Alex is responsible for the overall delivery of the audit.  She will 

meet regularly with senior management of the Council and will 

attend Audit and Governance Committee meetings.

Mark Bartlett, Audit Manager

Mark oversees day to day planning and manages the work of the 

Incharge auditor and associates to ensure that the audit work is 

focused on the key areas of the financial statements risks and 

compliance with relevant accounting standards and guidance.

Peter Brereton, Audit Incharge

Peter is responsible for the on-site delivery of the audit work.  He 

assigns activities across the team and ensures it is completed 

satisfactorily.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

March 2019

Year end audit

July 2019

Audit & Governance

Committee

19 February 2019

Audit & Governance

Committee

22 July 2019

Audit & Governance

Committee

22 October 2019

Audit 

Findings 

Report

Audit 

opinion

Audit 

Plan

Interim 

Progress 

Report

Annual 

Audit 

Letter

P
age 100



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 11

Early close

Meeting the 31 July audit timeframe

In the prior year, the statutory date for publication of audited local government 

accounts was brought forward to 31 July, across the whole sector. This was a 

significant challenge for local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time 

available to prepare the accounts was curtailed, while, as auditors we had a shorter 

period to complete our work and faced an even more significant peak in our workload 

than previously.

Despite the much tighter timescales in the prior year, the Authority successfully closed 

it’s accounts by the 31 May local government deadline and we audited the accounts 

by the 31 July audit deadline.

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources available 

to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall level of 

resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which 

authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May

• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, 

including early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data requirements 

and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to complete 

your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient time to meet 

the earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this 

does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby 

disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line with the timetable set out 

in audit plans (as detailed on page 11). Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds 

that agreed due to a client not meetings its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team 

on site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client 

not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the 

statutory deadline. Such audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the 

statutory deadline. In addition, it is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 

ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with us, 

including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 

accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 

reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise agreed) 

the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 

meetings during the audit

• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 

financial statements. 

P
age 101



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19 12

Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 

or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 

additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Eth ical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 

person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 

Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local 

public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. The following other services were identified.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 

consistent with the Authority’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit and Governance Committee. Any changes and 

full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be 

included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Housing 

benefits grant

15,301 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  

for this work is £15,301 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £31,792 and in particular relative to Grant 

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is an indicative fee and there is no contingent element to it. 

These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related - None

P
age 102



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Torridge District Council  |  2018/19

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 103



       .

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2019/20

Cycle 
1

Cycle 2 Cycle 
3

Cycle 4 Cycle 
5

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 
8

23/7/19 22/10/19 21/1/20 24/3/20
RIPA

Waivers and Non-
compliance with 
Procedure Rules

Anti Bribery Fraud and 
Corruption Policy

Update

Whistleblowing Policy 
Update

Annual Governance 
Statement: final review

Code of Corporate 
Governance Draft AGS

Governance

AGS 
Review of Evidence

AGS 
Review of Evidence

AGS 
Review of Evidence

Audit 
Committee

Effectiveness of Audit 
Committee

Risk 
Management

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register

Corporate Risk 
Register Corporate Risk Register

Audit Manager’s 
Opinion

Managing the risks of 
fraud & corruption

Internal Audit Strategy 
and Plan for 2020/21

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with Agreed 
Actions

Progress with
Agreed ActionsInternal Audit

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Audit Reports
Issued

Presentation & Approval 
of Accounts & AGS

Preparation for the 
2019/20 Accounts

FPR & CPR 
UpdateAccounts Report on 

Going Concern
Update 
report

Update 
report

Update 
report

Update 
report

Audit Findings Report Annual Audit 
Letter

Annual Certification 
Letter

Letter of Representation External Audit 
Plan

External 
Audit

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately.

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 16



Document is Restricted

Page 105

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	6 - Draft AGS 20 February 2019

	7 REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE SUPPORTING EVIDENCE (PRINCIPLE A)
	8 ANNUAL CERTIFICATION LETTER
	9 Internal Audit Strategy and plan
	10 AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE
	11 PROGRESS WITH AGREED ACTIONS
	12 GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT
	13 EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
	16 Forward Plan
	19 CORPORATE ASSURANCE RISK REGISTER - FEBRUARY 2019

